


We acknowledge the Traditional Owners of the land where ATSICHS 
Mackay Ltd now stands and recognise that this has always been a place 

of teaching and learning. 

We wish to pay respect to their Elders, past, present and future and 
acknowledge the important role Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander people 

continue to play within ATSICHS Mackay Ltd.
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About Us 

OUR VISION 

Our vision is to provide the highest standard of primary health care through a holistic approach 
toward diagnosis and management of illness. We are committed to promoting health, wellbeing and 
disease prevention to all clients. We aim to treat all clients with dignity and respect. 

OUR VALUES 

 Community controlled and lead;
 Respect for Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander people’s cultures;
 Integrity and honesty;
 Support to and for our community.

OUR MISSION 

Our mission is to deliver a quality and appropriate primary health care service to our regional 
community, the Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander people of the local Government Areas of 
Mackay, Isaac, Whitsunday and Central Highlands that is tailored to meet their health needs. To 
accomplish this, we work in partnership with appropriate organisations to ensure services are 
appropriate and accessible for our clients. 

Overview of ATSICHS Mackay Ltd 
AN INDIGENOUS COMMUNITY CONTROLLED HEALTH 
ORGANISATION 

The Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Community Health Service Mackay Ltd (ATSICHS Mackay) is 
one of the increasing number of self-governing, independent, community-controlled Indigenous 
organisations providing primary health care services to Indigenous people across Australia. ATSICHS 
Mackay has developed out of the desire of local Indigenous people to take control of their own health 
and of how primary health care services are delivered to and within Indigenous communities in the 
local Government Areas of Mackay, Isaac, Whitsunday and Central Highlands. 

In line with the principle and practice of self-determination, the general membership of ATSICHS 
Mackay has the mandate to determine the broad policies and procedures governing the operations 
of ATSICHS Mackay. 
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The Board of Directors are entrusted by the Indigenous community with the mandate to manage 
ATSICHS Mackay on their behalf. At each year’s Annual General Meeting of members, a minimum of 
eight new members are elected on a rotation of four new Directors being elected each year to the 
ATSICHS Mackay Board of Directors. The new Board of Directors is thereafter delegated with the 
authority to undertake the executive management of ATSICHS Mackay over the following twelve 
months. 

In the course of executing its executive management responsibilities, the Board of Directors are 
guided by the general Policies and procedures and constitution of ATSICHS Mackay. 

The Members of the Board of Directors make executive management decisions through the process 
of interpreting how the general ATSICHS Mackay policies and procedures apply situations under 
consideration by the Board of Directors. 

In line with the ATSICHS Mackay’s Constitution, while the general control of ATSICHS Mackay is the 
responsibility of the ATSICHS Mackay membership the executive control of ATSICHS Mackay is the 
responsibility of the elected Members of the Board of Directors. 

ATSICHS Mackay was established in 1978 (incorporated on 2nd November, 1978) by the Mackay and 
district Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander community. The purpose of this service was to improve 
primary health care to Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander people in the Local Government Areas of 
Mackay, Isaac, Whitsunday and Central Highlands. 

ATSICHS Mackay is funded primarily by the Department of Health (DOH). The focus of the service is 
to ensure the primary health care of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islanders is equitable to that of the 
main stream, health system. ATSICHS Mackay is responsible and accountable for the day-to-day 
operation and management of the health service. Consequently, assessments and reports of the 
standard of the health care provided by the organisation, provided to the Aboriginal and Torres Strait 
Islander community of the Local Government Areas of Mackay, Isaac, Whitsunday and Central 
Highlands as well as to State and Federal Government Health Departments. 

ATSICHS MACKAY’S CONSTITUTION 

ATSICHS Mackay’s Constitution sets out the fundamental principles and established precedents. The 
constitution is written down in a single comprehensive document, embodied as the codified 
constitution. ATSICHS Mackay is committed to the community per the constitutions governing nature 
and the Companies Limitation by Guarantee. 

LEGAL STRUCTURE 

ATSICHS Mackay is incorporated under the Corporations Act and Regulations 2001 (Commonwealth). 
The Board has adopted a corporate governance framework comprising principles and policies that 
are consistent with the Corporations Act and Regulations 2001 (Commonwealth). This framework is 
designed to promote responsible management and assists the Board to discharge its corporate 
governance responsibilities on behalf of the organisation’s members. 

Any person supporting ATSICH Mackay’s aims and objectives can apply to the Board of Directors to 
become a financial member of ATSICHS Mackay. The general membership of ATSICHS Mackay elects 
new Board of Directors members based on the rotational method of member terms as specified in 
the Constitution at the Annual General Meeting to manage the organisation for the following year. 
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EXTERNAL AFFILIATIONS 

ATSICHS Mackay is an affiliated member of Queensland Aboriginal and Islander Health Council 
(QAIHC), Townsville-Mackay Medicare Local (TMML), National Aboriginal Community Controlled 
Health Organisation (NACCHO), James Cook University, Tropical Medical Training, Check-Up and 
Headspace Mackay. 

FUNDING BASE 

The main source of operating income for ATSICHS Mackay is an annual grant from the Commonwealth 
Government’s Department of Health. The grant is provided on a financial year basis in line with the 
general Standard Terms and Conditions for funding, as agreed between the ATSICHS Mackay Board 
of Directors and DOH. 

CORE SERVICES 

ATSICHS Mackay provides a public primary health care service incorporating a bulk-billing general 
practice medical clinic, dental service, health screening and health promotion activities, and social 
emotional and wellbeing support and programs. 
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Board of Directors Report 
Mary Pitt 

I acknowledge the Traditional Owners past, present and future, of this land where I work and live 
and I recognise their links to land and sea. 

2017 Board Members are: 

Mrs. Mary Pitt  - Chairperson 

Mrs. Merle Barba - Deputy Chair 

Mrs. Jenny Binsiar - Secretary 

Mrs. Lynda Smith - Treasurer 

Mr. Adam Doull - Director 

Mr. Andrew Ramsamy  - Director 

Mrs. Sonetta Fewquandie - Director 

Mrs. Annabella Corowa  - Director 

The current Board members have various life experiences and professional capabilities. They are 
informed of local issues, understand policies, are aware of impacts of past social injustices and 
are accustomed to the protocols and practices of the local inhabitants. 

Background: 

The Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islanders Community Health Service (ATSICHS) Mackay Limited 
incorporated on the 2nd November 1978 and started as a referral service. It was through the 
commitment and dedication of many community members that ATSICHS is where it is today. 

ATSICHS continues to develop improvements to advance the organisation. This year (2017) marks our 
39th year of successfully delivering culturally appropriate primary and medical health services to our 
Indigenous community and to the wider community. 

The Staff: 

The combined efforts and our dedicated staff enables our essential services to continue to deliver 
much needed assistance to our communities. ATSICHS have a number of Indigenous staff and is 
managed by our experienced Executive Manager, Mrs. Valerie Pilcher and her competent Senior 
Management team.A multi-disciplinary team of GPs, Registered Nurses and Indigenous Health 
Workers offers the Clinical services to our community. Our service providers are culturally sensitive 
and are aware of most issues that have impacted on the Indigenous community. We deliver inclusive 
primary health care and medical services for the Indigenous population. We are committed to the 
improvement of our people’s general health and well-being for everyone. 
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Programs: 

The Social and Emotional Wellbeing Unit (SEWBU) and Healthy Lifestyle Unit is located at 31-33 
Victoria Street. Deadly Choices Tackling Indigenous Smoking is located at 45 Victoria Street. 

Other Programs of ATSICHS are the United Women’s Cultural Arts & Crafts Group held on Monday’s, 
the Men’s Group held on Wednesday’s, and the Chronic Disease “Bingo Betes” held on Tuesday’s 
once a month is now held at Yuwi Yumba Cultural Hub at 9 River Street. 

Kaziw Bayan Playgroup is held every second Wednesday at 31-33 Victoria Street. 

As the Chairperson, I am honoured to present to the Members and relevant bodies the ATSICHS 
Mackay Ltd Annual Report for 2017. This report is dedicated to the many Members and Significant 
Partnerships both past and present. 
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Directors profile 

Mary Pitt – Chairperson 

I was born at Thursday Island on 14th January 1949 and am of both Aboriginal and 
Torres Strait Islander descent. My mother was of the Jalunwarra clan of the 
Eastern Kuku Yalanji tribe of North Queensland and my father was a Torres Strait 
Islander from Kubin village on Moa Island. My husband, although a Torres Strait 
Islander, was born and raised in Mackay. We married in Mackay in 1968 and have 
lived here continuously since 1974. To date we have five adult children, twenty 
grandchildren and five great- grandchildren. 

I became interested in cultural events as an Indigenous Liaison worker at a Primary 
School. 

My involvement for many years with the Mackay Indigenous community was through a variety of 
activities and as a member of many committees, which included Domestic Violence Resource 
Services; MADAIMA (Murri Radio); NAIDOC; Mackay Regional Council for Social Development 
(MRCSD); Critical Reference Group member on the Suicide Prevention & Intervention and as a Board 
Member of ATSICHS. 

I’ve been a Justice of Peace since 2000. 

Later, as the only female cultural teacher at Mackay TAFE, I realised the importance of further 
education. In 2003 at the age of 54, I commenced four years of university studies at Curtin 
University at Perth Western Australia. I have a Bachelor of Applied Science degree in Indigenous 
Community Management & Development and was selected on the Vice-Chancellor’s List in 2005, 
which comprised of the top 1% of undergraduate students based on academic performance. 

In 2006 I completed my studies with an Honours degree in Indigenous Australian Research at Curtin 
University. 

In 2007 I was selected as the Indigenous representative on the Ministerial Regional Community 
Forum. 

In 2006 I facilitated at workshop for ATSICHS. Its purpose was to examine aspects of existing policies 
and procedures and investigate methods of implementing amended ones. In previous years, I was 
emcee at the Stolen Generation Dinners. In 2011, I was an independent facilitator for the 
Community Development section of the local Council at the NAIDOC Community Forum (Change: 
The Next Step Is Ours) that was held at the Civil Precinct in Gordon Street. 

My academic title is Indigenous Community Management & Development Practitioner. 

My passion is Social Justice for the local Murri community. 
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Merle Barba – Deputy Chair 

As an elder on the Board of Directors I endeavour to be able to convey the voice and 
the opinions on issues that may be causing them concern.  I have had the privilege of 
serving as a Director on other Aboriginal and Islander Organisations since 1970 and 
was an active member of the community in the setting up of Legal Service, Mackay 
Coloured Co-Op, and Yamadi HAAC Service and served as a Director on the HAAC 
Board for 10 years. My desire is that our people will always receive the best service 
from whichever organisation they are members of and that they must be heard. 

Jenny Binsiar – Secretary 

I was born in Cairns and grew up in Mackay. As an Aboriginal / Torres Strait Islander 
woman I am proud of my heritage and cultural background. Since resigning from full 
time employment, I have been actively volunteering within the community.  
I have been on the ATSICHS Mackay Ltd Committee for 3 years. I have five children and 
ten beautiful grandchildren. 
Reference Group for the QLD Centre for Domestic and Family Violence. Member for 
the Binga Birry Justice Group who are involved with the Elders in the community, Murri 
Court and Youth Justice, attended the Indigenous Women’s Leadership Workshop in 
Cairns in 2012 and met other strong black beautiful women who are just as passionate 
about their work in their community. 

Lynda Smith – Treasurer 

I take great pride in being part of our community and to be part of their overall healthy 
lifestyle that our Health Service can provide to the community of Mackay and District. I 
have come from a background of community health service starting out as a trainee 
health worker in Sarina with Mudth Niyleta Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander 
Corporation (Miller House) and finishing my degree at the Mackay Aboriginal Torres 
Strait Islander Community Health Service. 

Qualifications: 

University Degree BAPPHSC Bachelor of Applied Health Science Degree Indigenous Health. 
Associate Diploma of Health Science Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Primary Health Care. Advanced Diploma of 
Indigenous Primary Health Care. Aboriginal & Torres Strait Islander Community Health Services Health Worker Generalist. 
Justice of the Peace (Qualified) Certificate in Advanced Obstetrics & Gynaecology. Hearing Health Skills Certificate 
Australian Hearing. Eye Health for Indigenous Health Workers and Eye Health Coordinators Queensland University of 
Technology. Department of Emergency Services Counter Disaster & Rescue Services / Introduction to Disaster 
Management. 
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Studied at:

University of Queensland:  Cairns, Brisbane. Tropical North Queensland Institute:  Cairns, James Cook University of 
NQ. Dept. of Public Health & Tropical Medicine Anton Brienl Centre: Townsville. King George V Hospital: Sydney, 
NSW. Yangulla Centre Rural Training Unit: Rockhampton. A.H.W.E.P. (Aboriginal Health Worker Education Program) 
Central QLD Tafe: Mackay. 

Sonetta Fewquandie – Director 

Qualifications: 

Bachelor of Community Welfare: Diploma of Business Management, Certificate IV 
Training and Assessment, Certificate IV Indigenous Primary Health Care, Diploma in 
Children’s Services (Community Services).  

Experiences: Board of Directors Mackay Coloured Cooperative, Board of Directors 
My105 Radio Station (3years). 

Adam Doull – Director 

Formal Qualifications/Professional Memberships: Tradesman Boilermaker, Diploma of 
Management, Cert IV in Occupational Health & Safety, Cert IV in Training & Assessment, 
Cert IV in Building & Construction, QMS1, 2 & 3, Positive Notice Blue Card for Child 
Related Employment. 
Local Business Owner: Statewide Sales & Services PTY Ltd: for all your domestic & 
commercial roller door and shutter service and installation, Mackay regions only B&D 
accredited business. Domestic and commercial maintenance. 
Statewide Laser PTY Ltd: For all your Laser, Plasma and Oxy cutting processing of 
ferrous and non-ferrous material. 

Expertise/Experience relevant to Company Directorship: Board Member of MARABISDA, Board Member ATSICHS 
Mackay. I am of Torres Strait Islander descent and a proud member of a large local family who have had a long 
association with Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Affairs. I have a beautiful wife and 2 children, I have lived all 
my life in Mackay. I am currently employed as Previously I have been employed in the Mining, Construction and 
Education sector. 
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Andrew Ramsamy –  Director  

Formal Qualifications/Professional Memberships: Grad Cert MGMT (QUT); Dip MGMT; 
CERT IV Business; CERT IV/III Transport Operations; General Aviation Commercial Pilot; 
Commercial Master 4/5 Captain; Senior First Aid; Working with Children. 
Expertise/Experience relevant to Company Directorship: Board Member – ATSI Legal 
Service; Board Member ATSICHS Mackay Board Member KOEDAL ATSI Corp; CQITAFE 
ATSIASSI Advisory Committee; Executive Management roles. 
I am of Torres Strait Islander descent and a proud member of a large local family who 
have had a long association with Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Affairs. I am 
currently employed as a Tug Captain providing tug and towage services to the local 
Coal Ports. 
My other careers include General Aviation Commercial Pilot, Public Sector Management, Non-Government Sector 
Management and Private Sector Management. There are achievements that I have contributed to performing these 
various roles, but the most rewarding is the development of talents in others and seeing them succeed at what 
they now do. I am married with three beautiful kids; it has been a privilege to serve as a Director of ATSICHS 
Mackay Ltd. 

Annabella Corowa – Director 

I was raised in Mackay Community and very well known to everyone within the 
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Community. I have been involved with the Health 
Service for many years, participating an all cultural events at different times and had the 
privilege of supporting my sister Joan Seden setting up the Health Service. 

 I'm here as a director supporting our community to help better the future of our next 
generation. I have been involved with all our other Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander 
Organisations assisted were I could help in catering for different events in the 
community, especially with my tarts I make. I hope that I can contribute to the Health 
Service for many more years to come. 
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Executive Manager’s Report 
Valerie Pilcher 

Firstly, I would like to acknowledge the traditional owners on the land we are on 
and pay my respects to elder’s past, present and our future leaders. 
I would like to acknowledge and thank the Board of Directors on the leadership, 
guidance and support they have provided to me, the staff and the organisation 
throughout the year. I would also like to thank the Mackay community for the 
support they have provided to ATSICHS over the past 12 months. 

I also would like to acknowledge the hard-working staff employed at ATSICHS 
Mackay Ltd who are committed and continue to provide quality primary health 
care to our community in a culturally appropriate environment.  ATSICHS 
Management and Staff strive towards meeting the strategic plans of the organisation with the 
mission statement being strong in our delivery of services.   
ATSICHS Mackay Ltd continue to provide health and ancillary services to the community which 
include a GP service, playgroup, counseling, mental health, psychology, podiatrist, dietician, 
diabetes educator, deadly choices, and healthy lifestyle programs.  ATSICHS further supports the 
United Women’s Cultural Group and Gair Murrdies Haeremai (Men’s Group).   

ATSICHS Mackay Ltd has an offsite office situated at 45 Victoria Street, which supports our Deadly 
Choices Team, our Administration team and the Pioneer Murri Court.     
ATSICHS Mackay Ltd was successful in their tender for the old Skills Training Mackay building which 
is now called the YuwiYumba Cultural Hub.  The YuwiYumba Cultural Hub is home to BingaBirry 
Justice Group, Yuwibara Aboriginal Corporation, Wiri Community Ltd, the United Women’s Cultural 
Group and the Men’s Group.  The Cultural Hub is open 5 days a week Monday to Friday from 8.00 
am to 4.30pm.  Everyone is welcome to visit and get information about other service providers in 
the Mackay region.  ATSICHs has been very proud to sponsor and support the Mackay Aboriginal 
Dance Group.  This is a very young dance group that started out to learn aboriginal dance and 
perform when it was identified in the community that Mackay does not have a local Aboriginal 
Dance group.  The young performers have performed at various events in the Mackay region 
including at NAIDOC.   

ATSICHS Mackay was successful in maintaining 3-year funding from the Department of Prime 
Minister and Cabinet for the Social Emotional and Wellbeing project funded through the Indigenous 
Advancement Strategy (IAS) program.   ATSICHS received a further 3-year funding from the 
Department of Justice and Attorney General for the Community Justice Program which we currently 
auspice on behalf of the Pioneer Murri Court.  The services delivered by ATSICHS Mackay Ltd would 
not be successful without the support from our funding partners.   
On behalf of ATSICHS I would like to acknowledge and thank the following agencies for the support 
and contributions they provided to our success in the 2016/2017 year. 

 Department of Health (DOH)
 Department of Prime Minister and Cabinet (PM&C)
 Queensland Aboriginal and Islander Health Council (QAIHC)
 National Aboriginal Community Controlled Health Organisation (NACCHO)
 Northern Aboriginal & Torres Strait Islander Health Alliance (NATSIHA)
 Institute for Urban Indigenous Health (IUIH)
 Department of Justice and Attorney General (DJAG)
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 The Pharmacy Guild of Australia
 Headspace Mackay
 Primary Health Network Northern Queensland (PHN)
 James Cook University (JCU)
 Mackay Health and Hospital Service
 Indigenous Diabetes Eyes and Screening Van (I.D.E.A.S.)
 Queensland Health
 Yuibera Aboriginal Corporation
 Wiri Community Limited
 Bowen Basin Mining
 Yuwibara Aboriginal Corporation
 Mackay Children and Family Centre
 George Street Neighborhood Centre
 MARABISDA
 Double P Double I Reference Group

ATSICHS Mackay has continued to maintain successful accreditation of Australian General Practice 
Accreditation Limited (AGPAL), the International Standards Organisation 9001 (ISO9001) accreditation 
and the National Quality Safety and Health Standards (NQSHS).   

 ATSICHS is committed in working towards continuous improvement of their services to the
community to improve the health and wellbeing to close the gap on Indigenous Health
within our community Primary Health Network Northern Queensland (PHN)

 James Cook University (JCU)

Page 11



Corporate governance statement 

ATSICHS Mackay Ltd is committed to achieving the highest standards of corporate governance in 
order to ensure that the organisation is properly managed to protect and enhance 
members’/community interests, and the organisation, its directors, officers and employees operate 
in an appropriate environment of corporate governance. Best practice corporate governance is 
guided by the Australian Stock Exchange Corporate Governance Council (ASXCGC) that developed the 
Corporate Governance Principles and Recommendations (CGPR). 

As an unlisted company limited by guarantee, ATSICHS Mackay Ltd is not required to report against 
the CGPR. However, ATSICHS Mackay Ltd uses the CGPR as a guide to best practice, and has 
implemented these principles as far as they are relevant to it as a member organisation. ATSICHS 
Mackay Ltd reports against the CGPR in this corporate governance statement as part of its 
commitment to preserving stakeholder confidence. 

PRINCIPLE 1: LAY SOLID FOUNDATIONS FOR MANAGEMENT AND 
OVERSIGHT 

7.1.1.1 Board: Roles and Responsibilities 

The Board of Directors (Board) is the principal governing body of ATSICHS Mackay Ltd and is 
appointed annually by the members in accordance with the constitution. Membership of ATSICHS 
Mackay Ltd is open to adult Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander people over the age of eighteen 
years as per Local Government Areas. 

The Board is responsible for the overall governance of ATSICHS Mackay Ltd. The Board has delegated 
authority for the operations and administration of the organisation to the Executive Manager (EM). 

The functions of the Board are to: 

1. Provide effective leadership and collaborate with the management team in:
 articulating the organisation’s values, vision, mission and strategies
 developing strategic (direction) plans and ordering strategic priorities
 maintaining open lines of communication and promulgating through the

organisation and with external stakeholders the values, vision, mission and
strategies

 developing and maintaining an organisation structure to support the achievement of
agreed strategic objectives

2. Monitor the performance of the EM against agreed performance indicators
3. Review and agree on the action plans and annual budget proposed by the management team
4. Monitor the achievement of the strategic and business plans and annual budget outcomes
5. Establish such committees, policies and procedures as will facilitate the more effective

discharge of the Board’s roles and responsibilities
6. Ensure, through the Board committees and others as appropriate, compliance obligations

and functions are effectively discharged
7. Initiate a Board induction program and follow-up action to deal with issues arising and

arrange for directors to attend courses, seminars and participate in development programs as
the Board judges appropriate
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8. Ensure that all significant systems and procedures are in place for the organisation to run
effectively, efficiently, and meet all legal and contractual requirements

9. Ensure that all significant risks are adequately considered and accounted for by
the management team.

10. Ensure that organisation has appropriate corporate governance structures in place including
standards of ethical behaviour and promoting a culture of corporate and social responsibility.

The Board has no operational involvement in the conduct of organisation’s business activities and 
delivery of services. Its role is confined to setting and reviewing policy. 

Each individual Director owes to the organisation and its members an obligation to deliver his or her 
duties in good faith and in a manner, that the individual reasonably believes is in the best interests of 
the organisation and its members. Each person who is on the Board: 

 Has a duty to act in that position with honesty, diligence and reasonable care; and
 Shall not make improper use of information or opportunities received through that position.

To this end, expectations of the Board are to:

 Act honestly and in good faith
 Act with care and diligence
 Act loyally and avoid conflicts of interest
 Act professionally
 Avoid abuse of opportunity and information
 Act in the best interests of the Corporation
 Exercise powers for their proper use.

Board members are expected to be both collectively and individually accountable for all the decisions 
and actions that are taken/not taken by the Committee. 

No Director shall have the authority to, or issue any statement (written, oral, or otherwise) to any 
person or entity with respect to any issue in connection with which the person issuing the statement 
identifies his or her affiliation with the ATSICHS Mackay Ltd, or claim to speak or act on its behalf of, 
in the name of, or with the endorsement of the ATSICHS Mackay Ltd, without prior authorisation 
from the Board. 

The Board sets the strategic business directions for ATSICHS Mackay Ltd and decides the pace of 
implementation. An Annual Implementation Plan drafted initially by the Executive Manger and 
considered then approved by the Board, will specify outputs to be achieved. ATSICHS Mackay Ltd 
aims to increase the educational standards and employability of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander 
people in the primary health care disciplines through delivery of high quality and culturally 
appropriate training initiatives that respond to the needs of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander 
families and communities.The primary role of the Board is to oversee the operations and activities 
of ATSICHS Mackay Ltd to ensure it is achieving its business directions. This includes facilitating the 
smooth operation of the Board itself. The overseeing role of the Board can be broken down into 
more specific areas, which include: 

Fulfilling constitutional, legal, and funding body requirements 

 Financial management
 Program management
 External relations management
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 Forward planning and evaluation
 Policy development
 Effective business management
 Physical asset management
 Human resource management, which includes the power to appoint and remove or suspend

the Executive Manager and the Senior Management Team and agents and to determine the
powers, duties and payment of employees and agents and to approve and manage the
Executive Manager performance appraisal system

 Accountability to members, funding agencies, and the community

The ATSICHS Mackay Ltd Board is obliged as a collective group to govern the organisation 

according to: 

 The laws relating to it as a legal entity
 The laws relating to the purpose for which ATSICHS Mackay Ltd was established
 The philosophy, aims, objects, rules and by-laws set down in the Constitution
 The terms and conditions of any service agreements entered into by the Board
 The policies, procedures and practices formally endorsed by the Board.
 The Board is obliged to act in accordance with the provisions contained in a range of

documents, including legislated requirements under all relevant Awards and Acts
 The Board must decide which decisions can be made by the Committee or delegated to any

of its members such as the Chairperson, or to the Executive Manager.

The Board is ultimately responsible for ensuring that ATSICHS Mackay Ltd: 

 Meets all legal and statutory requirements
 Maintains financial viability at all times
 Provides a just and fair personnel/industrial climate
 Provides clear strategic directions and business priorities
 Ensures clear communication processes are in place to make certain that the Board and

members are kept informed.

7.1.1.2 The Role of the Chairperson 

The role of the Chairperson is to provide leadership, support and direction in relation to the strategic 
direction of ATSICHS Mackay Ltd in collaboration with the Executive Manager. 

7.1.1.3 The Responsibilities of the Chairperson 

 To preside as chairperson at each Annual General Meeting, Special Meetings and meetings
of the Board

 To represent the Board and be the public spokesperson for the Corporation
 To delegate negotiations with all governments and their ministerial staff, departmental

personnel, agencies and non-government organisations relating to the aims and objectives
of ATSICHS Mackay Ltd to the Executive Manager, whilst retaining the right to personally
attend and participate in any meetings

 To provide advice and guidance on policy matters to the Executive Manager
 To sign the report to be tabled by the Board at each Annual General Meeting.
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7.1.1.4 The Role of the Vice Chairperson 

 The Vice Chairperson is an automatic executive position and has the responsibility of
assisting the Chairperson to perform his/her duties both at Board meetings and outside of
Board meetings.

7.1.1.5 The Responsibilities of the Vice Chairperson 

 The Vice Chairperson needs to acquaint him/herself with the duties and tasks of the
Chairperson so that they are able to deputies at short notice for the Chairperson if required
to do so at any time.

7.1.1.6 The Role of the Treasurer 

 To ensure that all the money due to ATSICHS Mackay Ltd is collected and received and that
all payments authorised by the ATSICHS Mackay Ltd are made.

 To ensure that correct books and accounts are kept showing the financial affairs of ATSICHS
Mackay Ltd, including full details of all receipts and expenditure connected with the activities
of ATSICHS Mackay Ltd. This includes activities in connection with Agreements entered into
with Departments/Agencies of the Commonwealth and/or Queensland Governments.

 To routinely report to the Board at its meetings with appropriate documentation concerning
the financial affairs of ATSICHS Mackay Ltd. The Treasurer will establish the standard of
reporting documentation to be provided by the Finance and Administration Manager, which
include monthly reports showing total income and expenditure year to date; individual
program income and expenditure year to date; and a financial compliance report.

 To provide at each Annual General Meeting a financial report to the members on behalf of
the Committee, outlining a full disclosure of the financial affairs of the Corporation as
provided for in the Constitution.

 Subject to the provisions of the Act and with the approval of the Board, some of these duties
may be delegated to the Finance and Administration Manager.

7.1.1.7 The Role of the Secretary 

 To ensure the keeping of minutes and records of all appointments of office-bearers and other
Board members; the names of Board members present at meetings of the Board, committee
meetings or general meetings; all proceedings at meetings of the Board and meetings of the
organisation.

 To keep the Registrar of Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Corporations informed of all
relevant information.

 To ensure that minutes of proceedings at a meeting are signed by the chairperson of the
meeting.

7.1.1.8 Executive Manager 

The Executive Manager (EM) is appointed by the Board to manage the affairs of the Corporation and 
is responsible for implementing the policies and general planning set by the Board and conducting 
the day to day business of the Corporation. This includes responsibility for the management of 
ATSICHS Mackay Ltd in accordance with approved strategy, policies, performance contract and 
delegated authority framework. He/she is responsible for ensuring that the Board is provided with 
the relevant strategic options, policy and financial issues on which to deliberate, and with the 
necessary administrative support to enable the Board to work effectively.
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The EM attends Board meetings; however, he/she is not a Director and is not entitled to vote. 

The Executive Manager is responsible for: 

 The day to day management and administration of ATSICHS Mackay Ltd.
 Putting into operation decisions of the Board.
 Managing the day to day financial resources of the organisation within grant funding

guidelines and in accordance with the approved budget and variations.
 Overseeing the staff of the organisation including performance reviews, grievance

procedures, appointments and disciplinary procedures.
 Providing advice and assistance to the Board to enable effective decision making processes

for the functions of ATSICHS Mackay Ltd.
 Identifying funding sources and support  from the Government and non -

Government agencies.
 Ensuring that the Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander community within the Mackay region

are aware of the functions and policy framework of the organisation.
 Ensuring that the operations within the organisation are cohesive with and complimentary

to the operation of other indigenous organisation within the region.
 Promoting the role of ATSICHS Mackay Ltd at a local, regional, state and national level.
 Developing advocacy positions and submissions on behalf of ATSICHS Mackay Ltd.
 Ensuring that senior executives have formal job descriptions.

7.1.1.9 Performance management 

All staff and management including the senior executives of ATSICHS Mackay Ltd are subject to 
annual performance planning and reviews. The performance of each executive is assessed by the EM, 
who is their immediate supervisor. They are assessed against achievement of their job specifications 
and goals, contribution towards specific business and strategic objectives, and adherence to 
organisational values. 

Along with all staff, all executives of ATSICHS Mackay Ltd including the EM are remunerated according 
to the relevant award for their position responsibilities within the organisation. The Board is not 
remunerated. 

7.2 Principle 2: Structure the board to add value 

The Board consists of 8 members, non-executive Directors (as defined by the CGPR), who are not 
employees. A diagram of the governance structure is shown in the organisational chart. A quorum of 
no less than 50% of Board is required for each Board meeting. Board Members are elected on the 
system as specified in the Constitution at each Annual General Meeting. 

The Board assesses annually the independence of each Director. Directors must disclose to ATSICHS 
Mackay Ltd any matter which may affect their independence as soon as they become aware of it. All 
Board members are requested to disclose related party transactions on an annual basis and this is 
recorded in the Board meeting minutes of the relevant meeting. A person on the Board who has 
disclosed an interest cannot vote or be present during deliberations on any motion relating the 
contract or arrangement or correspondence. 
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The office-bearers of the Board are elected by the Board at their first meeting after the annual general 
meeting: 

 Chairperson
 Vice Chairperson
 Treasurer
 Secretary.

The Constitution specifies grounds under which a person ceases to be a member of the Board. 

ATSICHS Mackay Ltd is committed to ensuring that the good governance of the organisation is 
supported through appropriate opportunities for skill and knowledge development of Board 
members. To this end, ATSICHS Mackay Ltd has an induction and education program for all Directors. 
New Directors receive information about the organisation, outlining their duties and responsibilities, 
and attend a formal induction meeting. This is evidenced by an Induction Checklist, which includes a 
component identifying the need for any relevant training. 

All Directors have access to the Company Secretary who is appointed by the Board. The Company 
Secretary is accountable to the Board, through the Chair, on governance matters. 

7.2.1.1 Board Sub-Committees 

The respective compositions and details of meeting attendance of the committees are set out in the 
Directors' Report that is included in the Annual Report each year. Minutes of committee meetings 
are kept for all sub-committees of the Board. 

Each committee has a Terms of Reference describing its role and composition. The terms of reference 
are reviewed periodically to ensure that the role and responsibilities of each committee are 
consistent with ATSICHS Mackay Ltd strategic and operational objectives. The Board committees are 
each scheduled to meet as per the terms of reference for each committee. Attendance at Board 
committee meetings is set out in the Constitution. 

Senior executives supply the Board and its Sub-Committees with information to allow it to make 
decisions on an informed basis, and regularly attend meetings. 

At each of the meetings the Board receives comprehensive reports from: 

 Executive Manager
 Primary Health Care Manager
 Senior Medical Officer
 Finance & Administration Manager.

Notices of meetings are applied according to the Constitution and Terms of References. 

7.2.1.2 External Representation 

As part of its roles and responsibilities for relationship management, the Board of ATSICHS Mackay 
Ltd may decide to enter into formal, written agreements for partnerships, alliances or other forms of 
joint undertakings with one or more external organisations (including committees of various types), 
consistent with the aims and objectives of its Constitution.
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The Executive Manager will maintain a register of external organisations, partnerships, alliances or 
other forms of joint undertakings on which ATSICHS Mackay Ltd has representation. The Board will 
review its expected outputs from each such representation in the context of approving the ATSICHS 
Mackay Ltd Annual Implementation Plan. 

7.3 Principle 3: Promote ethical and responsible decision making 

Directors, members and employees of ATSICHS Mackay Ltd are required to act in accordance with 
the highest standards of honesty and integrity. ATSICHS Mackay Ltd promotes diversity across the 
organisation with regards to age, gender, ethnicity and the cultural background of its Directors 
committee members and employees. 

ATSICHS Mackay Ltd is a member organisation limited by guarantee and does not have securities 
(shares etc.) so does not report on share trading policies. 

7.4 Principle 4: Safeguard integrity in financial reporting 

7.4.1.1 External Auditors 

Connole & Carlisle Chartered Accountants have been ATSICHS Mackay Ltd’s external auditor for over 
two decades. The performance of the external auditor is reviewed annually by the Board and 
organisation members with advice from senior management. An analysis of fees paid to the external 
auditor, including a breakdown of any non-audit fees paid or received by the auditor, is provided in 
notes to the financial reports. It is the policy of the external auditors to provide an annual declaration 
of their independence to the organisation. The senior management of ATSICHS Mackay Ltd 
undertakes a full review of the terms of engagement of the external auditor and provides 
recommendations to the Board and the organisation’s members before re-appointment of the 
existing audit firm occurs. Senior management also seek annual tenders on the open market for the 
audit services. ATSICHS Mackay 

Ltd.’s external auditors undertake an annual audit, which is usually performed through twice yearly 
visits on premises. 

7.4.1.2 Finance Department 

The Finance Department consists entirely of organisational employees and assists the Board to 
discharge its responsibility to manage the business planning, budgeting processes and general 
financial management of ATSICHS Mackay Ltd. The Finance Department is headed by the Finance and 
Administration Manager (FAM), who holds a minimum qualification of either Certified Practicing 
Accountant (CPA) or Chartered Accountant (CA). 

Financial risk management practice is monitored by the FAM who provides regular reports to the EM. 
Up to date (live) financial data is presented at monthly management meetings and at each Board 
meeting. 

7.4.1.3 Principle 5: Make timely and balanced disclosure 

As ATSICHS Mackay Ltd is not a listed company; it is not bound by the requirement for continuous 
disclosure. Proceedings of all meetings are minuted. Minutes of all Board meetings are circulated to 
directors and approved by the Board at the subsequent meeting. Resolutions are first put to the 
Board in draft form (as a “Board Paper”) and, once passed, are recorded in a Resolutions Register.
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ATSICHS Mackay Ltd produces an annual report which is available to all stakeholders through its 
website. 

7.5 Principle 6: Respect the rights of shareholders (members) 

ATSICHS Mackay Ltd provides its members with timely access to information about its activities and 
changes in legislation that may affect its operation. Its four principal communication channels with 
members are its quarterly published newsletter, annual report, feedback forms and surveys 
(available in the reception area) and its website, www.atsichs.org.au. 

7.6 Principle 7: Recognise and manage risk 

ATSICHS Mackay Ltd has a risk management framework, risk policy and risk management program. 
The principal objectives of the risk management program are to protect the reputation and financial 
standing of ATSICHS Mackay Ltd and its membership and to optimize service to members. The Board 
is provided with regular reports on risk through the EM’s report. In addition, the Board discusses 
strategic and major operational risks as part of its regular meeting agenda. 

ATSICHS Mackay Ltd’s risk management framework provides a system of internal controls to 

minimise risk of fraud and corruption, which includes: 

1. Regular internal audits
2. Web-based compliance training
3. Annual quality accreditation audits, as part of the accreditation framework.

Risk management and anti-corruption practices are governed by the human resources policy, which 
prohibits conflicts of interest and requires all employees and volunteers to ensure that their 
behaviour is in compliance with all laws and regulations relevant to the legal jurisdictions in which 
ATSICHS Mackay Ltd operates. All employees are encouraged to report any breaches of the policy, 
and are assessed on their adherence as a part of their performance reviews. 

The internal audit function has established and implemented a system for identifying, assessing, 
monitoring and managing material risks throughout ATSICHS Mackay Ltd and is independent of the 
external auditor. This is monitored and coordinated by the Quality Coordinator (QC), who is an 
employee of ATSICHS Mackay Ltd. The strategic risk profile, including identification and treatment of 
risks and mitigating controls, is regularly reviewed and approved by the Board. The QC and senior 
management continuously monitor the risk profile and report any risks to the Board. 

Operational risk management is implemented through: 

 regular meetings of senior management;
 internal team meetings;
 Annual overview and forward strategic planning meetings (Board). ATSICHS Mackay Ltd has

a Strategic Plan prepared on a three-yearly rolling basis. Operational action plans and
budgets are prepared annually and approved by relevant funding bodies and changes to
those plans during each financial year may be made as required. In accordance with the main
funding body requirements, ATSICHS Mackay Ltd reports on its performance every six
months.
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The separation of powers has been incorporated in ATSICHS Mackay Ltd’s constitution and sets out 
clearly the delineation of the roles of ATSICHS Mackay Ltd’s Board and employees. 

ATSICHS Mackay Ltd has policies covering all operational aspects, and is subject to accreditation 
under quality standards including ISO 9001, AGPAL and NSQHS. 

7.7 Principle 8: Remunerate fairly and responsibly 

7.7 .1.1 Directors 

Directors do not receive remuneration benefits. 

7.7.1.1 Management 

The Board approves the salary bands for management and increases in accordance with relevant 
awards. The Board has the responsibility to approve the terms of the Executive Manager's 
appointment. The Executive Manager considers other management remuneration. All employee 
contracts are regulated by relevant human resource awards and legislation, and are subject to 
funding. 

Page 20



2017 NAIDOC KIDS DAY report 
Keylar Mogg 

The Maternal & Child Health team at ATSICHS Mackay held the “ATSICHS  
Children’s Day”, during the 2017 Naidoc week celebrations. The event was 
spent outside in the lovely sunny weather at Victoria Park State School. On the 
day, we were joined by My105 FM, Rebecca & Charlie from Bunnings 
Warehouse, Carly and Errol (green frog) from First 5 Forever, Australian 
Wildlife Rescue, Lyndell from the Department of Education and Training, 
ATSICHS Deadly Choices team, Becky’s Balloons and ATSICHS worker Nadine, 
who painted the children’s faces. 

The day was filled with fun activities, which included jumping castles, sand art, white tiles for the 
children to put their handprints on using Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander paint colours, wooden 
pieces that were cut into indigenous animals that were painted on by the children, egg spoon races, 
sack races, playdough, kinetic sand and games with the Deadly Choices team. 

The catering on the day was prepared by ATSICHS Healthy Lifestyle Worker, Sharon. Sharon made a 
variety of healthy foods, which included, spiral pasta bolognaises, sausage rolls, sushi rolls - tuna and 
egg, sandwiches - egg, ham and cheese, meat and pickles and vegemite and fresh fruit salad with 
natural yoghurt. 

Overall, it was successful day, with a great turnout by the community. The day was enjoyed by 
everyone that attended. The Maternal & Child Health team would like to thank everyone for 
attending, but most importantly we would like to give a special thank you to our fellow co-workers 
with their assistance on the day! 
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Primary Health Care Manager Report 
Allannah Munro 

It’s that time of the year again and it’s great to be back.  
I must say I had enjoy my time in Bamaga for 3 months immensely. 
Having worked in a remote community, you don’t realise how fortunate we are in 
living in a rural community and having access to the various services. 
I would like to thank Teiraen Toarei – Clinic Team Leader for doing a great job whilst 
I was on leave. 
ATSICHS clinical and non -clinical team continue to deliver a safe and high quality of 
health care to our clients. 
This is evident in the ongoing team work within the various sectors within the 
organisation and the participation and involvement from staff in organisational processes, safety 
systems and improvement initiatives. Like any other organisation, there is always changes whether it 
be a turnover of staff and introducing new programs. We keep striving to provide and deliver a safe, 
effective and reliable service to our local indigenous community whether it be in a clinical or program 
setting. 
As managers, this is also evident when making decisions to ensure that our community is our number 
one priority. Therefore, it’s always important that we continue to obtain feedback from the 
community in how we can improve our service delivery. 
We continue to work in partnership in addressing the needs of the community through providing 
specialist services.  In the last few weeks we have met with the various stakeholders in providing the 
following services to our indigenous clients 

 Sue McPherson NP Midwife – providing an antenatal clinic for our young pregnant mum’s -
clinic will be held on a fortnightly basis at ATSICHS

 DR Doran - Paediatrician -  providing Paediatrician clinic on a Wednesday morning fortnightly
basis for children from the ages 0 – 5 years

We look forward in working with the two services. 
Clinical Team 

Our clinical team now consist of the following: 
 1 Senior Medical Officer – DR Virja Panday
 2 Registrars – DR Mahadeva Prasad, DR Alok Mitra
 3 General Practitioners – DR Ljiljana Banic, DR Jan Hanson, DR Theresa Sheedy
 2 Registered Nurses – (1 Female/ 1 Male)
 5 Health Workers
 4 Health Practitioners
 2 Trainee Health Workers

I would also like to take the opportunity to congratulate Health Worker – Keylar Mogg who will be 
graduating with a Bachelor of Nursing within the next few months. 
It’s great to see our Health Workers continue with their career pathways. It’s a great motivation to 
other health workers to go on and further their studies to become Registered Nurses and Doctors. 
We welcome our new Registrar DR Alok Mitra to the medical team who has just recently joined us. 
ATSICHS continue to deliver Allied Health Services on referral from our General Practitioners. Allied 
Health Professionals continue to provide a continuity of care through prevention, diagnosing and 
treating a range of conditions and illnesses and work within a multi-disciplinary health team to provide 
the best patient outcomes. 
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Our Multi-disciplinary team consist of the following: 
 Dietitian – Jacqueline Holster -
 Diabetes Educator – Sherine Elias
 Pharmacist – Aneesa Davis
 Podiatrist - Pioneer Podiatry
 Paediatrician – DR Roddenby / Dr Doran
 NP Midwife – Sue McPherson
 Ophthalmologist - DR Denman
 Psychologist – Headspace

The clinical team continue to work alongside our Allied Health Professionals educating and 
encouraging the clients the importance in attending their appointments. 
Within the general clinic, the health workers and nurses work out of the three clinic rooms to perform 
the work ups prior to seeing the Doctor.  
Tuesdays and Wednesdays are our busy days in which we have the six Doctors and three Allied Health 
professionals operating on the same day. 
Unfortunately, the Dental Unit closed in August 2016 due to Funding. 
Chronic Disease  

Our team continue to work alongside Dr Panday and our Allied Health Professionals in organising 
appointments and arranging transport.  The referral process for our chronic disease patients they 
must have a current care plan. After twelve months’ care plans, must be updated and renewed. 
This is ongoing for our Chronic Disease team to ensure all patients presenting have a care plan in 
place.  
There are still a few issues with clients not attending their appointments with the Dietitian and 
Diabetes Educator.  
The team is currently working with the Allied team, by improving the attendance rate of clients by 
organising home visits. 
The Bingo Betes program is always well attended and the ladies enjoy coming every month. An 
information session and a healthy lunch is provided. 
 On the 26th & 27th July 2017 the Breast Screen Queensland Bus was parked in the ATSICHS car park for 
two days. Over the two days we had a great attendance with a total of 49 ladies.  
Thank you to the Deadly Choice Team in providing the shirts for those ladies that attended. 
Hopefully this will be a yearly event and look forward working with Breast Screen Queensland again 
next year.  

Maternal and Child Health  

Under the guidance of our Health Practitioner – Seba Bourne the team continues to provide a 
culturally appropriate service to accommodate the needs of our pregnant mum’s, babies and young 
children.  
Our childhood immunisation stats are being steady over the last few months. Due to the current work 
load the team will increase their immunisations days to three days.  
With our Clinic Team Leader/ Registered Nurse now immunisation endorsed, the team can go into the 
community to provide home visits to complete immunisations.  
The school screening program has been going well with the team visiting the local schools in 
performing the hearing and eye testing.  
This is done separately to the outreach program which is in conjunction with our Deadly Choice Team 
going into the schools to complete the indigenous health checks. 
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Kazil Banyan Playgroup 

Kazil Banyan Playgroup is held on a Wednesday every fortnightly. We still have our regulars that 
attend. 
These early years are important to ensure our children develop sensory, social and communication 
skills through activities such as: 

 Music and singing
 Outdoor play
 Arts and crafts
 Imaginative play

We continue to promote to the community and clients and encourage our parents to come along with 
their children. 

Outreach Team 

This year we were sad to see the resignation of Dellwyn Springer in our Outreach Team. 
We welcome Health Worker - Veronica Bayles to the team who works alongside Health Practitioner 
Ruth Mallie. 
They continue to provide an outreach service to our community by providing follow ups through home 
visits, organising of medication through the pharmacies and distributing of taxi vouchers to our clients 
that attend dialysis at Mackay Base Hospital. 
The team role also includes utilising the Care Co-ordination and Supplementary Services funding 
(CCSS) through purchasing medical aids for our chronic disease clients, assisting patients to access a 
range of services such as appointments with specialist and allied health professionals, arrangement for 
home help and making connections with the support groups. 

Men’s Group 

The Men’s Group is currently co-ordinated by Health Worker – Ringo Tapim. Since Ringo has taken the 
role on the group has grown with the number of men attending. 
The men’s group is held every week on a Wednesday at Yuwi Yumba Cultural hub on River street.  
The attendance numbers range from 8 -18 participants each week. The age group ranges from 17- 50 
years. Some the participants also attend with their support workers due to their disability.   
The activities include: 

 Walking
 Cooking Demonstrations – with our Healthy for Life Worker – Shaz
 Computer Classes
 Gym
 Attending Bunnings in the DIY Area
 Invite Guest Speakers – Deadly Choice Team, Relationship Australia, Marriage Counsellors,

Queensland Health
 Health Checks
 Cultural activities – fishing, visiting sacred sites at Nebo
 Musical / Yarning sessions
 Brief intervention sessions - Smoking and Nutrition

Since moving to the new premises Yuwi Yumba the men enjoy their new surroundings feeling more 
comfortable and relaxed. 
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United Women’s Group 

With the transition to the new premises at the Yuwi Yumba the ladies have settled in well.  
There is never a dull moment when it come s to our United Women’s group constantly coming up with 
new ideas and suggestions whether it be fundraising or arts and crafts activities. 
The ladies enjoy coming to together to socialise and keep active. 
Under the co-ordinating of Aunty Lesley Sabbo the ladies keep her on her toes.  At times, it can be 
very hectic, however I think Aunty Lesley would not have it any other way.  
The group always participates and gets involved with community events and activities. 
I would like to thank the ladies personally for always attending and supporting ATSICHS events and 
activities. 

Programs   

ATSICHS continue to deliver culturally appropriate programs and activities within the community 
through health promotion and education. 

 United Women’s Group

- Tai Chi
 Men’s Group

- Gym
 Maternal & Child Health

- School Screening Program
- Immunisations
- Outreach Program – Health Checks
- Kazil Banyan Playgroup

 Chronic Disease

- Bingo Betes
- Walking Group
- Water Aerobics
- Gym

 Deadly Choices Team

- Mentoring Program with Murray Court
- Healthy Lifestyle Program
- Good Quick Tukka

 Social and Emotional Unit

- Aboriginal Dance Group
- Deadly Thinking with KMG
- Grooming and Deportment
- MARABIDSA – Ice support group
- World’s Greatest Shave

Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Health Workers 

The role of the Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Health Workers (ATSIHWS) is crucial to improving 
health outcomes for Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander people. 
They play a vital role in primary health care, providing clinical and primary care for individuals, families 
and community groups. 
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Our health workers have a vast range of skills and knowledge as well as attributes that include the 
following: 

 Local community knowledge
 Advocate and educate community through a clinical and program setting
 Possess the clinical skills and knowledge within a clinical setting
 Co-ordinate events and activities for prevention and health promotion

 I would also like to acknowledge our nursing staff who work alongside our health workers in 
mentoring and sharing their clinical skills and working as a team. 
Again, without the contribution of the health workers, nursing staff and other health professionals, 
the clinic would not be able to deliver a high standard of c-ordinated patient care within our primary 
care setting.  
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Senior Medical Officer Report 
By DR Virja Panday 

GP STAFFING: 

FULL TIME EQUIVALENT STAFF:      
DR. Panday (SMO) 
DR. Prasad (supervised Registrar) 
DR. Mitra (supervised Registrar) 
PART TIME STAFF: 
DR. Banic 
DR. Sheedy 
DR. Hanson 

The health service is truly privileged to have this team of GPs who are highly professional, caring and 
committed to the delivery of a high standard of services to the community. 
Projected long term staffing still carries much uncertainty. 
The health service remains heavily dependent on supervised Registrars to provide GP workforce. 
The health service is unlikely to be able to increase its population of patients significantly or sustain 
its services long term without employing full qualified GPs outside of the registrar training program 
which is dependent on both the availability of supervisors prepared to take on this role and 
registrars interested in joining the health service.  Currently this role with multiple registrars (in 
addition to main role as SMO and clinical work) continue to be supported by the SMO and is not 
sustainable. 
The health service continues with its pattern of increasing services when workforce is increased by 
Registrars who join under their training programs and the stress placed on the health service to 
maintain services when the registrar moves on and is not replaced. This places the remaining GP 
workforce under stress and potentially places patients at risk if access is reduced. 
CLINICS: 

The health service is currently implementing a regular Saturday clinic with two GPs on most 
Saturdays. Its continuity will depend on the demand as determined by the actual numbers of 
patients attending appointments on the Saturdays. 
SERVICES: 

Refer to IT stats- currently not accurate due to errors on audit software tools. 
The business model of the health service is being discussed out of necessity. Areas such as 
efficiencies, large numbers of non- attending patients, a significant administrative burden on GPs 
assisting patients who do not attend appointments, many complex patients requiring significant 
input into their care even when not attending, need to upskill staff such as Health Workers and 
Registered nurses especially and an ongoing review of these areas by the management is being 
assessed on my recommendation. 
Conclusion: 

Key areas to address in my opinion are: 
GP staffing – full time and fully qualified GPs are essential for long term stability and or growth. A 
reduced reliance on GP registrars for workforce as has been the case for the past 10 years. 
Consider key factors to attract or retain GPs 
The business model in relation to services needs to be addressed 
The issue of too many patients not attending their scheduled appointments 
Community’s understanding of the limitations of the GP services that can be provided based on the 
number of full time equivalent GPs. 
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CLINICAL TEAM PROVIDING DEDICATED SERVICES TO THE COMMUNITY: 

 Receptionists
 Health Workers
 Registered Nurses
 Medical Practitioners
 Social Worker
 Mental Health Worker
 Visiting Services:

(Dietitian, Diabetes Educator, Podiatrist, Medication Review Consultant Pharmacist, 
Paediatrician, Community Mental Health support worker.) 

The team is professional and caring with a strong focus on the care of patients, their 
families and the community in general. The current team are either from the community 
or have received cultural orientation and cultural mentor support to deliver culturally 
appropriate care. Mrs. Mary Pitt is the nominated cultural mentor for the health service. 
In addition to the above, the team builds on its network of services especially: Mackay Base 
Hospital, Pathology and Radiology services bulk billed, Primary Health Network (Supplementary 
Services), DR Denman (Ophthalmologist), Community nurses especially Blue Care and Oz Care, 
ATAPS, psychological services, Life in motion (Exercise physiologist), IDEAS service, Breast Screen 
QLD service and Aged care nursing teams. 

This has required significant coordination efforts from the clinical team. It is heartening to have a 
network of professionals’ keen to assist in care and services needed. 

As much of our systems continue to evolve to more sophisticated electronic formats, IT Health 
Worker Matt Humphries provides ongoing maintenance, back up and upgrading of the systems and 
onsite support to the team. Most of our communications are moving to electronic formats including 
referrals to other health professionals and public hospitals leading to a more reliable and efficient 
communications process as well as being more environmentally friendly with the reduction of use 
o f  paper and ink.

Ongoing changes in Medicare funded items or available services continues and the organisation has 
had to adapt to these changes. This sometimes impacts on service delivery (such as removal of care 
plan related dental items which has resulted in loss of access to bulk-billed dental services.) 

GP staffing remains an ongoing issue. There is currently loss of one FTE GP registrar who was 
working 38 hours per week. As registrars are not guaranteed each term, this often means that the 
health service must deal with access for patients who were being seen by this FTE GP. It places a 
stress on the remaining GP workforce and a potential risk for the safety of patients who cannot 
access services. The health service is currently dealing with strategies to recruit and retain GPs. As 
SMO and as a GP trainer I have agreed to continue to take on mentored GPs and registrars to 
maintain our GP staffing. I am responsible to the training organisations and to the registrar or 
AHPRA to meet their supervision and training requirements. Unfortunately, this carries a significant 
administrative component and reduces my availability further for consulting. However, the net 
benefit is having more GPs with more access. 
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The Health Service continues to partner with James Cook University and encourage student clinical 
attachments here. It is hoped that this will motivate these future GPs to return to this sector in a 
seamless fashion due to their ongoing exposure to the health service. 

The GP team continues to have its meetings with ongoing input into the quality and safety of health 
services. This is an impressive team of dedicated GPs strongly motivated to provide comprehensive 
care to the patient and their families. Accreditation requirements have been met and the GP team 
continue to provide a high standard of safe services. 

As the health service only sees less than half of the community as clients and it is not possible to 
increase this capacity without more full time GPs long term, it remains a challenge creating more 
access for the community. As stated before there are many barriers including absence of funding to 
pay GPs, competition with the private sectors especially with salaries, a limited number of 
c o n s u l t i n g  rooms to accommodate GPs, a limited number of health workers and nurses to 
support a bigger GP team. Another area of increased need is attending to patients in the 
community or in nursing aged care. This is essential and encouraged however it is time consuming 
and reduces GP availability in the clinic for consulting. Some patients cannot get to the health 
service due to their physical conditions. End of life care is supported as much as possible in the 
home with GPs making themselves available after hours and remain on call for this. 

MEDICARE INCOME: 

Medicare income should remain as per each FTE and their billings to date with a pro rata reduction 
if there is a reduction in FTE GP. However, when any GP FTE reduction occurs, this reduces income 
disproportionately as each GP then has an increased administrative load to deal with for eg. 
prescriptions, hospital correspondence, checking results etc. Discussions are being held with 
management on how GP salaries can be made more competitive with the private sector without 
compromising the health service budgets which would mean working against Medicare revenues. I 
am in consultation with GPs regarding this as it impacts on the issue of retention of GPs. 
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GP Profiles 

DR VIRJA PANDAY 

I have been the Senior Medical Officer of ATSICHS Mackay now for several 
years. I am originally from South Africa where all my families still live. My 
Bachelor’s degree in Medicine and Surgery was from the University of Kwa-
Zulu Natal in 1990. Since graduation I have worked in several disciplines of 
medicine in public and private hospital services and in private practice. 

DR JAN HANSON 

I was born in the USA and moved to Australia in 1975, supposedly for two 
years! I did my medical training at Flinders University in Adelaide, and have 
lived in Mackay for almost twenty years now. 

I’ve been privileged to be a part of the GP service here at ATSICHS Mackay 
since mid- 2008. Though I have a background in Obstetrics and Gynaecology 
and continue to practice in my area of expertise, Women's Health, I enjoy 
working across the full spectrum of General Practice. 

In addition to my GP work here, I do Women's Clinics at Mackay Base Hospital, 
and enjoy teaching the next generation of doctors. 

When I'm not working, I like walking along the beach with my husband, visiting family, riding my 
bike, learning French and traveling 

DR THERESE SHEEDY 

I was born and raised in Mackay and returned here a little over two years ago, 
after twenty years away studying and working. I did my medical training at the 
University of QLD as a Rural Scholarship holder. 
Much of my career has been spent in remote areas of Australia including the 
Torres Strait Islands, Gulf of Carpentaria and Cape York Communities and Western 
towns such as Mt Isa and Longreach. Most recently I worked for five years in the 
East Kimberley region as a hospital and Flying Doctor. 
I have worked extensively amongst Indigenous people and I am so pleased I can 
continue this work at ATSICHS in Mackay. 
My most recent 'career' challenge is as a mother to two rambunctious boys under 
the age of four.  I have a large extended family in Mackay including my parents which prompted the move 
back here. 
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DR ALOK MITRA 

I am a GP Registrar – GPT3 Extended Skills and joined ATSICHS Mackay in July 2017. I 
am originally from India where my families still live. My Bachelor’s degree in Medicine 
and Surgery MBBS was from India in 1992. 

Since graduation I have worked in several disciplines of medicine in public and private 
hospital services and in private practice. I am an Australian Citizen. 

I’m working towards my Fellowship with the Royal Australian College of General 
Practitioners with my time at ATSICHS counting as advanced training in Indigenous 
Health.   

My interests are Art & Painting and I like to read. 

Page 31



DR LJILJANA BANIC 

I was born in Belgrade, capital of Serbia and former Yugoslavia, where I finished 
my medical degree and specialist training in ophthalmology. I moved to 
Australia with my family 10 years ago, and first lived in Sydney for a couple of 
years and then moved to Mackay. I came to ATSICHS Mackay during my 
advanced GP registrar training and decided to stay after my fellowship exam. 
I now divide my GP work between Paul Hopkins Medical Clinic and ATSICHS 
Mackay Ltd. 

I have two sons and like spending time with my immediate family in Australia 
but also visiting my mother and other relatives overseas. I am passionate about 
travel, music and my (overgrown) garden. 

DR MAHADEVA PRASAD 

I graduated with a Medical Degree and post graduate training in Orthopaedic 
Surgery from India. I moved with my family to United Kingdom where I spent 5 
years before moving to Australia. 

My Australian journey started in Atherton in 2008. I moved with my family to 
Mackay in 2011. I am currently working towards my RACGP fellowship under 
the Remote Vocational Training Scheme program. 
Working in ATSICHS is a special path to grow not only as a doctor but a great 
opportunity to contribute. 

I take interest and enjoy travelling a playing badminton, Carrom Board and 
chess during my spare time. 
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Quality Management System 
By Nadine Bellear 

ATSICHS Mackay is the representative of the Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander 
community of the local Government Areas on matters relating to Aboriginal and Torres 
Strait Islander health. It is vital to our organisation; we meet the required international 
and national health care standards as part of our commitment to the community.  This 
is completed by ensuring we achieve and deliver the highest level of holistic health 
care. Maintaining certification of quality and safety quality management systems are 
imperative to our service delivery of primary health care. 

1.1 GOALS,  AIMS AND OBJECTIVES 

Our goal is to enhance the health and wellbeing of the Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander people and their 
families of the local government areas, through the provision of a safe, friendly, confidential and culturally 
appropriate quality primary health care services that recognizes community control and participation. To 
achieve our goal, we strive to provide appropriate primary health care in two areas: service provision and service 
delivery. We also strive to support families, carers, self-help voluntary groups and organisations in the primary 
health area, and to strengthen the ability of individuals and community to determine the conditions which affect 
their health. Our aims and objectives include: 

ATSICHS Mackay Ltd aims to: 

 A healthy and viable community controlled health organisation built on the foundations of strong
leadership and good community governance.

 To provide comprehensive primary health and wellbeing care to the Mackay Aboriginal and Torres
strait islander community.

 To increase health and wellbeing outcomes for the Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Community in
the Mackay region through community engagement.

 ATSICH Mackay to be sustainable and viable community controlled organisation delivering primary
health and wellbeing services to the Mackay Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander community.

1.2 ISO 9001:2015 QUALITY MANAGEMENT SYS TEM (QMS) STANDARD R EQUIREMENTS 

ATSICHS Mackay is proud to be ISO 9001:2015 accredited. ISO 9001:2015 Quality Management Systems: 
Requirements is an international quality management standard for organisations of any type. The main objective 
of the standard is to achieve ‘client or customer satisfaction’.  The structure of ISO 9001:2015 is aligned with 
good practice and requires that our organisation establishes and maintains a quality management system that 
integrates planning and performance management.  The Quality Management System will be driven by our 
organisation’s vision and values and be focused on achieving the best possible outcomes for our clients.  
There are ten sections in the ISO 9001:2015 standard. The first three sections are introductory and the following 
six sections (Sections 4 – 10) specify ISO 9001:2015’s requirements for implementing our Quality Management 
System.  
The key sections of ISO 9001:2015 are:

Section 4:  Context of the organisation; 
Section 5:  Leadership; 
Section 6:  Planning; 
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Section 7:  Support; 
Section 8:  Operational; 
Section 9:  Performance evaluation; 
Section 10:  Improvement. 
Together, sections 4-10 of ISO 9001:2015 define what should be done consistently to provide services that meet 
client needs and are applicable to legal and regulatory requirements and continually improve the quality of our 
service delivery.  ISO 9001:2015 requires that a quality management system is implemented across the 
organisation and staff especially management play a role in maintaining and monitoring the various elements 
of the system. The overall requirements and a guide to the quality management system can be accessed through 
the LOGIC Quality Management System software.  
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WHAT IS A QMS? 

It is a management system to manage critical tasks relating to quality, safety, risk, compliance and business 
improvement. 
What is the Importance of QMS?

It provides clear direction, is more efficient and ensures accurate operations within the organization, relating to 
the key elements.  This ensures outcomes are achieved to the highest standard. 
WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF THE QMS?  

The purpose of the ATSICHS Mackay Ltd Quality Management System is to support the health service operations, 
so our services and programs consistently and effectively meet consumer expectations, applicable regulatory 
requirements and provides a mechanism for continual improvement.  
The Quality Management System provides a framework from which our team can make appropriate decisions 
whilst ensuring that applicable minimum standards are met. 
The organisations Quality Manual describe the Quality Management System and the roles and responsibilities 
within ATSICHS Mackay Ltd for overseeing and implementing its components.  

WHAT ARE THE BENEFIT S OF A QMS? 

It ensures that products and services are safe, reliable and of good quality.  Also, a fully documented QMS will 
ensure that two important requirements are met: 

 The consumers’ requirements – confidence in the ability of the organisation to deliver the desired
product and service consistently meeting their needs and expectations.

 The organisation’s requirements – both internally and externally, and at an optimum cost with efficient
use of the available resources – materials, human, technology and information.

These requirements minimize errors and increasing efficiency. 
A QMS enables the organisation to achieve the goals and objectives set out in its policy and strategy. It provides 
consistency and satisfaction in terms of methods, materials, equipment, etc., and interacts with all activities of 
the organisation, beginning with the identification of consumer requirements and ending with their satisfaction, 
at every transaction. 
MOTIVATION OF THE QM S:  

Management motivation  
Stakeholder motivation 
THE GOAL OF THE QMS:  

A Quality Management System is essential for ensuring effective and maintainable improvements to the safety 
and quality of care within the organisation.  There have been significant improvements in safety and quality over 
the last few years, and there are now more systems in place to regulate practices and processes, to make in it 
easier for health providers and other key personnel to deliver a high-quality of care through all areas of the 
organization, ensuring consumer satisfaction. 
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THE SCOPE OF THE QMS : 

To demonstrate its ability to consistently provide services that meets consumer and applicable legal and 
regulatory requirements  
To enhance consumer satisfaction through the effective application of the system, including processes for 
continual improvement of the system and the assurance of conformity to consumer legal and regulatory 
requirements. 
HOW DO WE DEVELOP A QMS?  

The ATSICHS Mackay Ltd Quality Management System applies to all activities of the organisation, and has been 
developed in accordance with ISO 9001:2008 and Core Standards for Safety & Quality in Healthcare Services. 
The Quality Management System is fully documented and structured in three levels.   
Level 1: Quality Manual - This document details the corporate quality policy and structure of the organisation 
and references appropriate Operating Procedures.  
Level 2: Operating Procedures - These documents describe the actual process, and controls applied, to all 
activities concerned with the attainment of a quality assured services and programs.  
Level 3:  Documents, Records and Forms - These documents provide evidence of activities.  

1.3 NATIONAL SAFETY AND QUALITY HEALTH S ERVICE (NSQHS) STANDARDS 

These Standards are designed to assist health service organisations to deliver safe and high quality care.  The 
Standards encompass ten NSQHS standards and details the requirements to achieve and govern the health 
service. 
The primary aims of the NSQHS standards are to protect the public from harm and to improve the quality of 
health service provisions. They provide a quality assurance mechanism that tests whether relevant systems are 
in place to ensure minimum standards of safety and quality are met, and a quality improvement mechanism 
that allows health services to realise developmental goals.  This can be achieved through internal/external 
auditing and accreditation certification processes. 
The Standards are essential to the accreditation process as they determine how and against what an 
organisation’s performance will be assessed. The Australian Commission on Safety and Quality in healthcare’s 
new arrangements are, all health services such as hospitals and day procedures services will be accredited to 
the NSQHS Standards.  Other health services may choose to use the NSQHS Standards as part of their internal 
quality systems, which the ATSICHS Mackay Ltd organisation has welcomed and established. 
The NSQHS Standards are: 
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1.4 RACGP Standards scrutinized by AGPAL 

AGPAL accreditation involves a thorough assessment of a general practice’s systems, processes and facilities 
against standards developed by the Royal Australian College of General Practitioners (RACGP).  Like the ISO 
9001:2008 standards and NSQHS Standards, the practice is committed to improving practice efficiency, 
providing quality health care and continuous quality improvement. 

1.5 EXTERNAL REVIEWS /AUDITS & ACCREDITAT ION 

Accreditation is recognised as an important driver for safety and quality improvement and Australia’s health 
accreditation processes are highly regarded internationally.  
Accreditation is a system to promote and support safe patient care and continuous quality improvement of the 
health service through a process of regular assessment and review. 
Accreditation feedback is an effective element within the improvement system because it can verify that actions 
are being taken, that system data and information are being used to inform the analysis (organisation) of issues 
and program solutions, and that safety and quality improvement is being achieved.  
Financial Audits - Please refer to Financial Section 

1.6 OVERVIEW 

A QMS can be defined as: 
“A set of co-ordinated activities to direct and control an organisation to continually improve the effectiveness 
and efficiency of its performance.” 
ATSICHS Mackay Ltd has established and maintained a QMS throughout the organisational processes. We have 
achieved this by implementing the requirements of the ISO9001:2008 standards, the NSQHS standards 1-10 
(exemption from standard 7), RACGP (4th Ed) Standards. 
Resulting in continual re-certification and the achievement of significant awards and nominations such as: 
2010 – Awarded: Quality Improvement and Accreditation certificate awarded from the Qld Aboriginal and 
islander Health council (QAICHC) 
2014 – Met with Merit award from The Australian Safety and Quality Commission in Healthcare 2012 for The 
National Standards for Safety and Quality in Healthcare, standard 1.1.2. 
ATSICHS Mackay is committed to quality and safety within the organisation for the community. 
2017 – Successful transition to ISO 9001:2015 Quality Management Systems: Requirements. 
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2 The Accreditation Journey 
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SEWB Unit Report 
Rebecca McColm BSW - Social Health Counsellor 
Patricia Kemp -  Community Services Worker   

This year has shown a major growth in people accessing support from 
the SEWBU Unit. The SEWBU Unit has doubled the number of clients as 
of this time last year and is continuing to increase on a regular basis. 
The local high schools and primary schools are continuing to refer 
students for support and an increase is being seen. 

SORRY DAY: On the 26 of May we had our Sorry Day Event which was a 
success.  Although projected numbers were down due to lack of school participation, it was a good 
day.  The focus this year was about our elders and survivors.  The Elders and survivors attended a 
quiet intimate luncheon where they could share their stories with each other.  The guest speakers 
involved were councillors who acknowledged the apology, and peoples who were of the stolen 
generation that spoke of their lives and what the apology meant to them.  There were morning 
activities where community was asked to Decorate and write on coloured hands that were placed into 
the ground (sea of hands) as a sign of support to the Stolen Generation survivors and their families.  
We were also given a performance by ATSICHS very own Aboriginal Dance Group.  

There is a lot of planning and development that goes into the organising of such events, and can be 
overwhelming.  The feedback we received from some of those that attended has been fantastic and 
SEWB is proud of our dedication. 

KMG: SEWBU has been working with Kutta Mulla Gorrinna to deliver the ‘Deadly Thinking’ program 
which is an Indigenous specific suicide prevention course, that has been developed by the Australasian 
Centre for Rural and Remote Mental Health.  

Clients:  Our clientele is doubled from this time last year.  There has been an increase in appointments 
due to more self-referrals, this is an indication that people are beginning to seek support when needed 
and are aware that SEWB is here.  Numbers will often peak in areas and time of need and plateaus on 
occasions this includes Christmas holidays, school holidays etc.  

Outreach: We continue to do outreach services however due to increase in local clientele it is done on 
an as needs basis due to travel times, therefore maximising the support available daily to local clients. 

“ICE” information and awareness: SEWBU has also be assisting Marabisda with their Methamphetamine 
support group to deliver the ‘Deadly Thinking’ program. 

Aboriginal Dance Group: ATSICHS Dance group participants varies in ages from as young as 4 through 
to 17.  There is a mixture of both male and female.  Deb and Lyndon volunteer their time to help teach 
dance, songs and instruments to the kids on a weekly basis.  From humble beginnings, the group now 
has over 30 children attending and is continuing to rise. 
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Social, Emotional and Wellbeing Unit 
Annual Report for 2016/2017 

CLIENTS      Females     Males 

Mackay      88 50         38 
Bowen 
Proserpine  
Moranbah  
 Overall clients       88      50    38 

Contacts including groups and visitors 

Women’s Group  30+  
Men’s Group  15 
COUNSELLING/SUPPORT 

Number of contact sessions 385   
Number of contact hours 400+  
Number of Phone contacts 100+ 
Number of family group counselling 

Contacts by GENDER 

Number of Males 190 
Number of Females 250 

CULTURE 

Aboriginal    62  
Torres Strait Islander    12 
A/TSI 
Unknown 
A/SSI     4  
Non Indigenous     10 

PRESENTING PROBLEMS 

Stress  
Family problems  
Homelessness 
Stolen generations 
Dept. Housing 
Multiple Problems
Mental Health issues 
Grief and Loss 
Parenting issues  
Discrimination in workplace 

Health issues 
Child safety issues  
Drug & alcohol issues
Depression/anxiety   
Support      
Domestic Violence   
Behaviour issues   
(children) 
Suicide/Self Harm Ideation 

Clients will many times present with 
anything up to 4-5 issues.  

REFERRALS FROM 

Schools 15 
Self-referral 46 
Health Centre Doctors 25 
Murri Court 2 
OUTREACH 
Numbers of participant vary 

As required 

COMMUNITY EVENTS/MEETINGS Sorry Day, World’s Greatest Shave 
CONFERENCES/WORKSHOPS/TRAINING 

Shark Cage (Domestic Violence Narrative 
therapy) 
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Mental Health Report 
Katrina “Teenie” Hanson

In October 2016, I commenced in a new role of a Well Being Worker (mainstream 
Mental Health Worker) at ATSICHS Mackay. 
I joined the field of trained health workers, specialising in mental health, mental illness, 
crisis and suicide prevention, intervention and  
post intervention in the community. 
I have been passionate about improving access to effective and culturally appropriate 
services regarding the mental health care for Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander 
people, families and communities.   
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander health workers play a vital role in the support of 
primary health care, for individuals, families and community groups.  The common objective is to assist 
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander communities to take a strong role in controlling and managing their own 
health and lifestyles. 
We aim to provide a safe entry to mental health for family carers and friends that are living with mental illness.  
We are here to break down the barriers that restrict our mob from accessing the right services for your own 
health. 
Family, carers and friends gain new ideas and can share experiences learnt from others.  Information and 
education, the Mental Health Act, and the legality of the orders associated with mental health and your 
wellbeing can be obtained by using the Health worker. 
I have on hand a range of other supports, such as withdrawal/detox from Methamphetamines, support for 
rehabilitation services, appropriate counselling and group programs.  Many of the people who seek our support 
in the region are experiencing problems with methamphetamine.  Alcohol and other drugs and non-compliancy 
with medication is a gap that needs addressing district wide.   
This year has been quite busy within the service, continuing and creating working partnership with QLD Health 
Acute Care Team, QLD Health Psychiatrists, Psychologist, Social Workers, QLD Health Forensic Mental Health, 
Mackay Police Service, North Queensland Primary Health Network, QLD Health MHAODS, Mackay Regional 
Mental Health Network, Select ability (MIFNQ), Well Ways,  Mackay Women Centre, Mackay Domestic Violence 
Centre,  Suicide Prevention Project, Mackay Regional Suicide Prevention Network, Suicide Risk Reduction 
Steering Committee, “Change the Game”  - Tackling Mental  Health head on, Headspace, EDLINQ, Marabisda, 
Queensland Corrective Services - Probation and Parole Office, ATSICHS Deadly Choices team, QLD Health Child 
and Youth Mental Health team, QLD Health Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander health workers for Child & 
Maternal, QLD Health Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander health worker for Child & Youth Mental Health, 
Partnership with PHN – Psychologist, KMG – Kutta Mulla Gorinna youth alternative learning Centre, Mackay GP’s 
and health workers, families and carers in the Mackay district.  
Mental Illness and Mental Health 

The Acute Care Team (ACT Team) is the first point of contact to the Mental Health Service.  Referrals are 
provided by the GP’s and sent to the ACT Team for an assessment. 
I can provide support for the client and families to the nearest mental health building and get medical assistance 
asap.  The risk of the client absconding at that time is critical, as they are vulnerable and unwell.  I keep contact 
with them until an assessment has been done and a care plan has been developed.   The process of mental 
health and its terminology can be quite daunting trying to understand it all. Indigenous people in Australia have 
experienced trauma because of colonisation, including the associated violence and loss of culture and land, as 
well as subsequent policies such as the forced removal of children. In many Indigenous families and 
communities, this trauma continues to be passed from generation to generation with devastating effects.   
I have addressed the physical and community barriers through approaches such as: 
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• providing transport to health service
• having flexibility in setting appointments
• using home visitation as part of a multi-faceted engagement strategy
• building therapeutic and clinical relationships based on trust and mutual respect
• adopting strategies that support cultural competency and safety at the systemic, organisational and

individual levels, including appropriate communication styles, and working through community
Elders and kinship networks

• ensure that the interaction with the clinician is welcoming and be present to provide support.

Under the direction of the Acute Care Team leader, I have done risk assessments to ED, which resulted in 
admission those clients spending time in the mental health unit.   
The suicide rate amongst Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander peoples is more than double the national rate. In 
2015, suicide accounted for 5.2% of all indigenous deaths compared to 1.8% for non-indigenous people.  
Mackay has had it fair share of loss of lives due to suicides which has affected our community in a major way.   
In 2015 we sadly lost young men and from there the community created the Double P Double I group to work 
with families in the community and providing safe talk.  In 2016 there was zero suicides for our mob and in 2017 
we sadly have lost 2 lives.  The deceased persons were not known to the mental health service or to the ATSI 
Mental Health worker.  This is the gap that must be addressed by using the support services that are in place.  
There is no shame in finding the right help, suicide is everyone’s business. 
Working within our community and from previous years with QH Mental Health, the following was   recognized 
to:  
• identifying individuals and groups at risk of suicide;
• ensuring continuity of care for any individuals at risk of suicide
• helping to build the capacity of primary care services to provide person-centred care
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STIGMA 

There is no doubt that stigma prevents many people seeking help.  Talking about suicide is a bad idea and can be 
interpreted as encouragement.  Given the widespread stigma around suicide, most people who are 
contemplating suicide do not know who to speak to.  Rather than encouraging suicidal behavior, talking openly 
can give an individual other option or the time to rethink his/her decision, thereby preventing suicide. I have 
united with the Mackay Hospital and Health Service in the promotion to reducing the stigma in mental health.  
Workers all have a shirt and wear that each Monday to promote awareness to Shatter Stigma. Most people with 
mental illness lead lives like anyone else, working and participating with family and friends. The most disabling 
aspect of mental illness for many is the way they are treated and excluded from those things the rest of the 
community take for granted.  
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Zero Suicide 

What is Zero Suicide: it is a commitment to suicide prevention in health and behavioral health care systems, 

and also a specific set of tools and strategies.  It is both a concept and a practice.  

The Gold Coast built on the Zero Suicide Framework to develop their Suicide Prevention Strategy 2016-2018 to 
reduce suicide of mental health service consumers.   
I have been a committee member of the Mackay Suicide Risk Reduction Steering Committee since 2015 and have 
been a part of the development of model for Mackay.   
Zero Suicide relies on community and system-wide approaches to improve the outcomes and close the gaps.   
This initiative requires the engagement of the broader community, especially suicide attempt survivors, family 
members, health workers and GP’s.     
More information on Zero Suicide is available at http://zerosuicide.sprc.org/ 

SUICIDE PREVENTION COMMUNITY ACTION PLAN 2017 - Lifespan is an innovative, world-class approach to 
suicide prevention and is the new name for the Systems Approach to Suicide Prevention initially developed on 
behalf of the NSW Mental Health Commission by the NHMRC Centre for Research Excellence in Suicide 
Prevention (CRESP) and Black Dog Institute. Based on the most up-to-date evidence available and drawing from 
positive results of similar, large-scale suicide prevention programs overseas, Life Span involves the 
implementation of nine evidence-based strategies simultaneously within a localised area. This integrated 
systems approach is expected to prevent 21% of suicide deaths, and 30% of suicide attempts. 
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ICE FORUM – February 2017 

From the forum ATSICHS and Marabisda joined forces to assist parents that are on have had their children 
removed from their care and/or have been incarcerated.  We ensured that  
• We provided a safe place for conversation
• We provided a healthy meal and drinks
• We followed up with the group to meet appointments at Probation and Parole, mental health and the

GP clinic.
• The members made the rules and they were open to share their stories and experiences ensuring that

all the group maintained confidentiality.
• 3 females attended rehabilitation centres in Queensland.
• Children have been removed from families as the child is at high risk of child neglect and/or abuse at the

hands of parents or carers.  Through assessments, it is the children (the 3rd Generation) that are
showing evidence of Intergenerational Trauma – anger issues, domestic violence, abandonment, suicidal
thoughts, verbally abusive, and parents in and out of prison, homelessness, behavioral problems, not
attending school.

ICE EDUCATION  

I designed a poster that are being used in workplaces and school.  The message is quite powerful and personal 
and it shows our own people on the poster telling our mob that ice is not welcome in our community.   I used 4 
different groups covering the Aboriginal, Torres Strait Islander, South Sea Islanders, and Youth.  
The posters are in the community with the aim to reduce the amount of ATSI & SSI people that are letting the 
drug -  Methamphetamines control their lives in the Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander & South Sea Islander 
community. 

The pamphlet has been designed for suicide prevention and is available in the 
clinic or through the service.  It has warning signs and local content to seek help. 
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Deadly Choices Report 
Lisa Raikaki – Deadly Choices Regional Manager 

Firstly, I would like to pay my respects to traditional owners 
Of the land in which we gather in Mackay, the Yuwibara People 
and in Townsville the Bindal and Wulgurukaba People both 
past, present and in the future. 

What is Deadly Choices? 
Deadly Choices in an initiative of the Institute for Urban Indigenous Health (IUIH) 
Deadly Choices aims to empower and educate Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander people to make healthy 
choices for themselves and their families – to stop smoking, to eat good food and exercise daily. Deadly Choices 
also encourages our people to access their local AMS and complete an annual ‘Health Check’, and encourage and 
assist those who wish to quit smoking. 
Deadly Choices has been in Mackay and Townsville for over 12 months with the main office set up in Mackay. 
We have a team of five staff in Mackay and five in Townsville, our team consists of eight Tobacco Officers 1 
Tobacco Champion and 1 Receptionist. 
In the past one and a half years Deadly Choices has made an impact in both communities educating them with 
the 8-week Healthy Lifestyle Program, “Good Quick Tukka” how to prepare healthy affordable meals that can 
feed big families, Traditional Indigenous Games, and Smoking Cessation working with Quit line and GP’s plus 
helping their community members to quit smoking whilst being their support network liaising with them as often 
as they need. 
In the past 12 months, we have seen a lot of positive outcomes in both communities, whether it be in the 
schools, organisations/groups or just within the wider community, we have made a positive impact across the 
board. 
 In the last 6 months the Deadly Choices Consortium has changed the scope of our target group, in the past our 
main focus for our programs were in the schools, educating our young people,  but due to the saturation of our 
schools, our focus is now on the communities, adding the Smoking Cessation Program to the  Healthy Lifestyle 
Program and pushing our Deadly Places Smoke Free Spaces Campaign and focusing more on helping our 
community to quit smoking with a hands on support from our Tobacco Officers and Tobacco Champion. 

We have adopted an “Outreach Program “encouraging our community members to get their 715 Healthcare 
Check, this service is us going out into the community where we have a greater number of our people that can’t 
get into the clinic, where they can get a check and follow ups, get referred to the clinic. 
The past 18mths has seen us host some successful events in both communities ranging from sports, health to 
family events delivering the one message. ‘A Deadly Choice is a Healthy Choice” 
We couldn’t do this with the support of ATSICHS Mackay.  
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Human Resources Report
Amanda Prewett 

MAHRI 

OUR APPROACH 

It is hard to believe that over a year since I started here at ATSICHS Mackay, I joined the 
company in February 2016. In January 2017, I commenced Certificate IV in Human 
resources and passed April 2017. 
For any business to be successful in achieving goals, it first needs to recognise that the 
employees are its greatest asset. We at ATSICHS Mackay Ltd strongly believe, to be 
successful, we should value and nurture our staff professional development to meet 
their individual career objectives while maximizing organisation goals. We also 
recognise that the way in which we go about our business is just as important as the 
results that we achieve. We endeavor to have the policy and procedures in place to 
support and develop our staff 

STAFF PROFILE 

ATSICHS Mackay Ltd prides itself for employing staff from various cultural background. For period 
ending 30th June 2017, we employed 71 staff members. 65% of our staff members identify themselves 
as either Aboriginal and/or Torres Strait Islander while remaining 35% were from non-indigenous 
background. In the last financial year, 52 staff members were employed on full time basis, while 19 were 
employed on part-time basis & 8 volunteers. A snapshot on basis which staff members were employed 
is illustrated below and it further gives a gender breakdown of our workforce. 

33 
12 

19 

7 8

FIGURE 1: EMPLOYMENT BASIS AND GENDER 
BREAKDOWN FOR PERIOD ENDING 30TH 

JUNE 2017. 

Male Full Time Male Part Time Female Full Time    Female Part Time Volunteers 
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EMPLOYEE TURNOVER 

Employee turnover refers to the proportion of employees that have departed from our organisation 
and it’s calculated by dividing the number of separation that occurred during the year with the 
number of staff from the organisation in last financial year. 18% of the employees departed from the 
organisation in last financial year. This is a decrease of 8% relative to 2016 financial year. Staff 
departed from our organisation due to relocation, pursuing other career paths and full time studies. 

RECRUITMENT OF NEW STAFF MEMBERS AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY. 

ATSICHS Mackay Ltd as a community based organisation is committed to hiring local indigenous 
community members wherever possible and provides them with significant induction, training and 
mentoring and ongoing support. 46% of current employees are members of the local indigenous 
community. The recruitment panel consists of four members and is gender-balanced and as well as 
includes a board member. 

One of the great hurdles that we face as an organisation is recruitment and retention of general 
practitioners. This is mainly due to the following reasons: 

 Overall shortage of Doctors in Australia

 Competitive remuneration packages offered by private practice

 Refusal to work under Community Organisational Structure (Prefer to work independently)

 Lack of interest in A&TSI Health issues

Executive Manager

Finance & 
Administration

Clinic
GPs

Deadly Choices 
Tacling Indgenous 

Smoking

SEWBU

Mental Health
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Figure 2: Areas of Employment
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TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT 

As mentioned previously, we recognise that one of the critical ingredients of operating a successful 
business is to have a skilled workforce. ATSICHS Mackay has made this commitment to its employees. 
We have either funded or are/will be funding the costs associated with Certificate IV in Aboriginal & 
Torres Strait Islander Primary Health Care (Community and/or Practice), Continuous Professional 
Development for Doctors, Accountants and Human Resources Officer. Apart from affording the costs of 
training ATSICHS Mackay Ltd is open to planning where staff are able to undertake study leave at a 
mutually convenient time. 

LEGISLATIVE CHANGES 

Several important changes have been made to the Fair Work Act in 2014 and 2015. Listed below in 
brief are some of the keys changes: 

1. The National Employment Standards have been changed, effective from 1 July 2013, in
relation to various parental leave entitlements and requests for flexible work arrangements.
Prior to 1 July 2013, the only people who could request their employer for a change in
working arrangements (or for a “flexible working arrangement”) were parents or carers of
children under school age, or, children under 18 with a disability. The group of people eligible
to request a flexible working arrangement has now been expanded – with effect from 1 July
2013 – to include employees who:

a) are carers of children who are of school age or younger;
b) are carers of persons who are disabled, chronically or terminally ill, mentally ill or frail and

aged;
c) themselves have a disability;
d) are 55 or over;

e) are victims of domestic violence; and
f) are caring or supporting a member of their family or household because the other person is

themselves a victim of domestic violence.

The right of parents and carers with childcare responsibilities, or those returning to work after taking a 
period of parental leave, to request to work part-time has also been expressly recognised “to avoid 
doubt”. As to what else might constitute a “flexible working arrangement” continues to be left open. 
Employers will still be entitled to refuse a request for flexible working arrangement based on 
"reasonable business grounds”. The issue of how employees provide evidence of their entitlement to 
request a flexible working arrangement has raised some concern, particularly for employees who apply 
on the ground of being a carer or because a family member is suffering from domestic violence. Some 
employees may feel that the provision of that information is humiliating or undignified. Employers 
will have to make it clear to employees that their information will be handled sensitively and 
confidentially (as indeed it should be under privacy legislation). A non-exhaustive list of what this may 
entail has been provided in the legislation, including: 

a) excessive cost to accommodate the request;
b) lack of capacity to reorganise work arrangements; and
c) Significant loss of efficiency and productivity.
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2. As of 1st January 2014, FWC bullying jurisdiction will add to what is already a hotbed of
potential risk for employers in relation to workplace bullying. Employers who do nothing, or
not enough, to manage that exposure could find themselves exposed to significant business
disruption and cost if bullying occurs in their workplace. From 1 January 2014, a worker who
“reasonably believes” they have been bullied in the workplace will be able to apply to the
Fair Work Commission and seek orders against the perpetrator and their employer requiring
them to stop the bullying. Under this novel anti-bullying complaints regime, a worker will be
considered to have been bullied at work if an individual or group of individuals:

“Repeatedly behaves unreasonably towards the worker… and that behavior creates a risk to health and 
safety”. 

“Reasonable management action carried out in a reasonable manner” will not amount to conduct in 
respect of which an application might be made. However, that formula, which is common in worker’s 
compensation legislation across Australia, is almost certain to result in arguments about whether 
behaviour did or did not amount to bullying. 

The protections will extend to “workers” including: 
 employees;

 contractors and sub-contractors;

 outworkers;

 apprentices and trainees;

 work experience students; and

 Volunteers.

Where the Commission is satisfied, that bullying has occurred and there is a risk of further 
occurrences, the Commission will be able to make “any order it considers appropriate” – except an 
order requiring payment of compensation – to stop the bullying. The bite in such an order is that any 
breach of it might attract a civil penalty up to $51,000 for corporate offenders and up to $10,200 for 
individual offenders. But there will also be the direct and indirect costs of preparing for and 
participating in the initial application, in yet another formal channel for workers to complain. 

When considering an appropriate order to make, the Commission must have regard, among anything 
else it considers to be relevant, to any attempts made to resolve the complaint at the workplace level. 
The Commission will almost certainly be interested to see if the worker has firstly tried to resolve 
their issues through internal mechanisms, such as under an employer’s grievance and workplace 
harassment policies. 

The Explanatory Memorandum to the legislation provides that “Orders will not necessarily be limited to 
apply only to the employer and the worker who is bullied, but could also apply to others such as co-
workers and visitors to the workplace”. In certain circumstances, the tribunal may consider 
ordering that the perpetrator and the victim should be separated from one another at work. This may 
throw up difficult issues for an employer in respect of relocating employees and changing working 
arrangements. Any orders made in relation to ‘visitors’ have the potential to make things very tricky 
for businesses indeed, particularly if the visitor happens to be a high-profile supplier or client. 
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Bullying has become, and will continue to be, a difficult area for employers to manage their increasing 
obligations. In future workplace bullying complaints might lead to: 

 liability under stop orders made by the Fair Work Commission;
 civil liability to penalties for breach of those orders;
 civil liability for penalties and compensation in proceedings under the existing mechanisms

of the Fair Work Act relating to “workplace rights” and “adverse action”;
 worker’s compensation disputes and litigation;
 criminal liability under workplace health and safety laws;
 Civil liability for damages for personal injury.

INDEMNITIES AND INSURANCE PREMIUMS FOR OFFICERS 

ATSICHS Mackay Ltd holds insurances for worker’s compensation, motor vehicles and other property in 
accordance with the usual practice of business and in compliance with appropriate laws and the term 
and conditions of Program Funding Agreement. Workers Compensation Insurance is held at a cost of 
$14,740.30 (inclusive of GST). The corporation maintains appropriate worker’s compensation insurance 
with Work Cover Queensland. No Work Cover claim were lodged in 2016 financial year. Our Professional 
Indemnity Insurance has been prepaid to 30th June 2018 for claims up to $20,000,000.00 for the cost of 
$44,110.00 (inclusive of GST). 
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Overview of the finance department 
DR Maria Tyler CPA

To achieve ATSICHS Mackay Ltd.’s vision of providing the highest standard of 
primary health care through a holistic approach towards diagnosis and 
management of illness along with committing of promoting health, wellbeing and 
disease prevention to all clients, the Finance Team of ATSICHS Mackay Ltd is 
committed to the effective and efficient management of financial operations in 
order to ensure the future economic sustainability of the organisation.  To comply 
with relevant legislative requirements (such as Corporations Act 2001) and 
reporting in accordance with Australian Accounting principles, the finance 
department observes strict principles as outlined in Funding Agreement.  To maintain financial data 
integrity, the department observes the following internal procedures: 

1. Use of sequentially numbered business forms (such as on cheques and payment data, sales
invoices, etc.) to provide an audit trail;

2. Built in validation checks for processes to ensure correctness (such as cross matching invoices
and payment totals against the individual items on the invoice/payment documents);

3. Follows a hierarchy of spending level approval authority;

4. Performs bank reconciliation of accounts on weekly basis; and

5. Implements monthly budget and cash flow projection reports for Senior Management and
performs a regular comparison of budget against actual figures (including investigating any
significant discrepancies) for the Board of Directors;

6. Separation of duties performed by all staff; and

7. Maintaining books and records up-to-date, balanced and externally audited.

Basis of Accounting 

The financial statements are general purpose financial statements that have been prepared in 
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (as issued by the Australian Accounting Standards 
Board) and the Corporations Act 2001. Australian Accounting Standards set out accounting policies that 
result in financial statements containing relevant and reliable information about operational 
transactions, events and conditions.   

The financial statements cover Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Community Health Service Mackay 
Ltd as an individual entity, incorporated as a company limited by guarantee and domiciled in Australia.   
The financial statements have been prepared on an accruals basis and are based on historical costs, 
modified, where applicable, by the measurement at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial 
assets and financial liabilities.  
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Detailed Financial Analysis  

The financial statement illustrates the key areas from which ATSICHS Mackay Ltd generates revenue 
and incurs expenses.   The Profit & Loss Statement summarises the revenues, costs and expenses 
incurred during the financial year.  For the financial year ending 30th June 2017 reflected a strong 
operating performance across the organisation delivering an operating surplus before tax of $62,263.  
This was underpinned by increases in revenue from the core business areas of grants received and 
interest earned. 
Revenue 

All revenue discussed in this financial report excludes goods and services tax (GST). Grant revenue 
received by ATSICHS Mackay Ltd is recognised in the Profit and Loss Statement when the entity obtains 
control of the grant and it is probable that the economic benefits gained from the grant will flow to the 
entity and the amount of the grant can be measured reliably.  All major activities are funded by the 
Federal and State Governments namely, Department of Health (DOH), Department of Prime Minister & 
Cabinet (PMC) and Quality Use of Medicines Maximised for Aboriginal & Torres Strait Islander People 
(Qumax). In particular, ATSICHS Mackay Ltd is heavily dependent on Department of Health for the 
majority of its revenue used to operate the business.  In 2017, ATSICHS Mackay Ltd further secured 
funding from Institute for Urban Indigenous Health (IUIH). Additional income is received from self-
generated Medicare funds.  There are a number of other smaller revenue streams which are illustrated 
graphically in Figure 1 below. The self-generated income in this figure includes all Interest Received, 
Medicare, Registrar Reimbursement, Client Record Fees, Membership and Sundry earnings. 

Total revenue increased by $73,173 or 1.41% during financial year ending 30th June 2017. Total revenue 
for the period ending 30th June 2017 was $5,251,662 in contrast to $5,178,489 for the previous financial 
year. The decrease in revenue was primarily due reduction in earnings from: 

 Increase in allocation of Department of Health, Urban Indigenous Health funding relative to
previous and Primary Health Network;

 New funding received from National Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Health Worker
Association (NATSIHWA), CheckUp Australia, Department of Justice and Attorney General,
Primary Health Network, James Cook University and Gambling Community Benefit Fund; and

 Increase in Self-Generated incomes such as interest received and other Sundry income.

Figure 1: Total Revenue For The Period Ending 
30th June 2017.

Primary Health Care S&E Wellbeing Tackling Indigenous Smoking

PHN - Care Coordination NATSIHA Income Chronic Disease
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Total of $2,991,213 funding was received from Department of Health (DOH).  As outlined in the funding 
agreement the grant received was used in specifically in paying costs associated in the following areas: 

 operation of clinical services inclusive of transporting clients;
 accreditation expenses;
 running of new directions program (formerly known as Mothers & Babies); and
 chronic disease program.

As per the Funding Agreement with Department of Prime Minister & Cabinet, all grant money received 
is used for funding of Social and Emotional Wellbeing activities for clients of ATSICHS Mackay Ltd.  For 
the financial year ending 30th June 2017 a total sum of $223,918 was received.  Quality Use of 
Medicines Maximised in Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander People Program (QUMAX) recognises the 
key role played by community pharmacy in primary health care through the delivery of Pharmaceutical 
Benefits Scheme (PBS) medicines and related initiatives. These initiatives include: 

 Pharmacy Practice Incentives (PPI)
 Medication Management
 Research and Development
 Rural Programs
 Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Programs
 Location Rules
 Community Service Obligation

For financial year ending 30th June 2017, total amount of funding received under this program was $13.  
ATSICHS Mackay Ltd received $579,651 for financial year ending 30th June 2016 from Institute for 
Urban Indigenous Health (IUIH) to carry out programs associated with promoting awareness of the risks 
associated with smoking and reducing the amount of passive smoking and tobacco smoked each day.  
The program further encourages and supports smokers to quit and non-smokers to continue avoiding 
uptake.  

Unfortunately, ATSICHS Mackay Ltd is no longer funded to provide Emergency Relief to its clients and 
the community at large.  However, we continue to provide support, where possible, to our clients by 
utilising income from Self Generate Funds to assist people in financial crisis to deal with their immediate 
crisis situation in a way that maintains the dignity of the individual and encourages self-reliance. This is 
evidenced by the large increase in client support costs in the 2017 financial year.  
Assistance to clients generally is in the form of: 

 purchase vouchers of a fixed value (for example, food, transport or chemist   vouchers);
 part-payment of an outstanding account (for example rent/accommodation; utility account/s);
 material assistance such as household goods, food parcels or clothing budgeting assistance;

and
 information, advocacy and referrals.
 

ATSICHS Mackay Ltd also runs other programs and activities other than those listed above. For more 
information about these, please refer to the Primary Health Care Manager’s report. 

Expenditure 

Total Expenditure before tax for financial year ending 30th June 2017 was $5,189,399 compared to 
$5,209,687 in the 2016 financial year.  The overall decrease in expenditure was primary due to: 

1. Decrease in advertising expenses by 73%.  In the financial year ending 30th June 2016, the total
cost was $21,802 compared to $5,750 for financial year ending 30th June 2017.
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2. A 52% decrease in expenses related to purchasing of new computers. In the 2016 financial year,
ATSICHS Mackay Ltd spent $80,896 whilst in the 2017 financial year, $37,884 was incurred.

3. A 11% decrease in the expenses related to leasing of vehicles in comparison to previous
financial year.  The decrease is due to ATSICHS Mackay Ltd decreasing the number of fleets and
replacing old expensive fleets with cheaper fleets.

4. Decrease in traveling expenses by 57%.  In the 2017 financial year traveling expenses was
$40,254 in comparison to $94,602 in the previous financial year.  The decrease is due to most
meetings and trainings being held via telephone conferencing or online.

In stating the above, there was a surge in expenses in the following areas and these was primary due to 
the following: 

1. An increase in Programs & Activities expenses by 17.2%.  In the financial year ending 30th June
2016, the total cost was $182,844 compared to $214,379 for financial year ending 30th June
2017.  A pertinent amount of this increase is attributed to ongoing healthy living and cease
smoking campaign.

2. A 72% increase in costs associated with providing client support.  For financial year ending 30th

June 2017 the total cost of providing client support was $183,244.  This contrasts with $106,270
incurred in previous financial year.  This increase is mainly due to an increase in the number of
clients to which certain services are provided to.

Figure 2, graphically illustrates the areas in which ATSICHS Mackay Ltd incurs expenses. The majority of 
expense is incurred in the running of the clinic, followed by the operational costs of the Mothers & 
Babies program.  

Figure 2: Total Expenses For The Period 
Ending 30th June 2017.
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Net Operating Profit 

Revenue increased and expenses declined in the financial year ending 30th June 2017 in comparison to 
financial year ending 30th June 2016. As revenue earned was greater than expenses, the organisation 
had a net profit of $62,263 for the financial year ending 30th June 2017 (in comparison to a loss of 
$31,198 for the previous year ending 30th June 2016).  

Balance Sheet 

The balance sheet is one of the major financial statements used by accountants and business owners, 
stakeholders. The balance sheet is also referred to as the statement of financial position.  The balance 
sheet presents a company's financial position at the end of a specified date. Some describe the balance 
sheet as a "snapshot" of the company's financial position as at one moment in time (the end of the 
financial year). The balance sheet allows the reader of a company's financial position to view what a 
company owns, as well as what it owes to other parties as of the date indicated in the heading.  The 
major components of a Balance Sheet are:  

 Assets;
 Liabilities; and
 Owner’s Equity.

ATSICHS Mackay Ltd.’s balance sheet remained relatively stable in the 2017 financial year. The overall 
current assets increased from $1,368,602 in 2016 to $1,521,209 in 2017. There was a slight decrease in 
current liabilities due at 30 June from $385,081 to $383,748. The current liability predominantly 
comprised of employee leave entitlements and Good & Services Tax payable. The cash balance can be 
analysed by viewing the organisation’s Cash Flow Statement. For the purposes of the cash flow 
statement, cash and cash equivalents includes cash at bank and on hand, cash at call, short-term money 
market securities and term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less. The cash flow 
statement indicates that cash flow provided from operating activities increased by $209,714.  This was 
primarily due to an increase in revenue funding, interest earned and decrease in payments made to 
suppliers and employees, as indicated above in the analysis of expenses. Minor capital works was also 
carried out at 31 Victoria Street which lead to decrease in net cash for investment activities from 
$101,721 to $56,704. Finally, as no long-term loans were taken out, there was no cash generated from 
financing activities. Therefore, cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year ending 30th June 2017 
increased by $209,727. 

Trade and other receivables represent amounts yet to be received by ATSICHS Mackay Ltd for services 
performed on credit. Trade and other receivables are treated as current assets, and amounted to 
$67,994 for the financial year ending 30th June 2016 (compared to $ 20,646 in the previous year). This 
increase is related to the GP Registrar reimbursement and Primary Health Network Care Coordination 
and Supplementary Services programs, as well as Dental invoices. All outstanding amounts are expected 
to be received in the 2017 financial year. 

Property, plant and equipment represent all fixed assets that are owned by ATSICHS Mackay Ltd. These 
are carried at cost or fair value as indicated, less, where applicable, accumulated depreciation and any 
impairment losses.  This class of assets decreased by $1,070,307 in the 2017 financial year.  The 
decrease can primarily due to revaluation of the main building located at 31 Victoria Street and amount 
of depreciation charged. 
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Trade and other current liabilities represent the amounts owed (unpaid) at the end of the reporting 
period for goods and services received during the reporting period.  This balance ($383,748) is 
recognised as a current liability, and is normally paid within 30 days of recognition of the liability (usually 
by the end of July in the following financial year) except in the case of employee entitlements which are 
usually paid out within 12 months. The figure for the 2017 financial year is comparable to that of the 
2016 financial year ($385,081) and is predominantly comprised of Goods and Services Tax (GST) and 
employee entitlements. 

Equity represents the net worth of an organisation. It can be calculated by taking the total amount of 
assets and subtracting the total amount of liabilities. ATSICHS Mackay Ltd.’s equity comes from two 
sources. The first is the Asset Revaluation Reserve, which represents a reassessment of the value of a 
capital asset as at a particular date.  An asset is originally recorded in the accounts at its cost. This cost 
is spread over the asset’s effective useful life to the organisation – this is termed ‘depreciation’. Assets 
are occasionally re-valued in the accounts in order to reflect a closer approximation to their realistic 
“worth”.   For the financial year ending 30th June 2017, this reserve decreased due to depreciation and 
revaluation of assets which resulted in decline in value by $1,069,965. 

The main source of equity lies in the organisation’s Retained Profits. This represents accumulated profits 
from each year’s profit or loss. For the financial year ending 30th June 2017, the retained profits 
increased by $62,263 (the profit from the 2017 financial year). 

Taxation 

ATSICHS Mackay is a not for profit entity, and as such, is not subject to taxation on profits by the 
Australian Taxation Office. Liquidity, Solvency and Gearing

Financial ratios are useful indicators of an organisation's performance and financial situation. Most 
ratios can be calculated for information provided by the financial statements.  Financial ratios can be 
used to analyse trends and to compare the firm's financials to those of other firms. For the purpose of 
this report, only two ratios are examined: The Current Ratio, which is a measure of organisational 
liquidity, and the Debt ratio, which is a measure of organisational gearing. Together, they provide an 
indication of the overall short term liquidity and long term solvency of the organisation. 

The current ratio provides information about a firm's ability to meet its short-term financial obligations. 
This is referred to as ‘liquidity’, and in general, it is more desirable for a firm to be liquid.  The current 
ratio is usually of particular interest to those extending to short-term credit to an organisation, and can 
often be included as one of the covenants on debt issued to a firm.  The current ratio calculation is: 

Current assets/current liabilities 

For financial year ending 30th June 2017, the current ratio of ATSICHS Mackay Ltd was 2.61. This 
indicates that for every $1 of short term debt, ATSICHS Mackay Ltd had $2.61 in current assets with 
which to pay it. This is deemed to be good liquidity. 
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An organisation’s assets are usually funded by a combination of debt and equity financing. Debt 
financing can include long-term loan borrowings, and equity funding is the amount that the business 
owners have contributed. In the case of ATSICHS Mackay Ltd, the equity funding primarily relates to 
retained profits of the company. The debt ratio indicates what proportion of an organisation’s assets is 
funded by external debt sources (as opposed to equity or owner’s sources). The higher the debt funding, 
the more highly ‘geared’ or ‘leveraged’ an organisation is considered to be. A highly-geared company 
faces various potential risks in terms of future abilities to repay its debt-load.  The debt ratio is 
calculated by: 

Total Liabilities / Total Assets OR 
Total Liabilities / [Total Liabilities + Total Equity]. 

For the financial year ending 30th June 2017, ATSICHS Mackay Ltd had a debt ratio of 0.15. This means 
that 15% of the organisation’s assets are funded by debt, with the remainder (85%) being funded by 
retained profits. This indicates that ATSICHS Mackay Ltd is very minimally geared, and that there is 
confidence in its future abilities to pay its long-term obligations. Figure 4 illustrates the asset versus 
liability composition of ATSICHS Mackay Ltd. 

These two ratios indicate that ATSICHS Mackay Ltd is solvent as at 30th June 2017. 

Forecast for the Financial Year ahead 

We are expected to break even in the 2018 financial year.  This is primarily due to the expectation of 
continuation in revenue streams, including self-generated income which funds any program deficit.   

Overall, ATSICHS Mackay Ltd is deemed to be in a sound financial position as at 30thJune 2017. 

Assets

Liabilities
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Figure 3: Assets Vs Liabilities for Financial 
Year Ending 30th June 2017.
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ABORIGINAL & TORRES STRAIT ISLANDERS COMMUNITY HEALTH 

DIRECTORS' REPORT

Your directors present this report on the company for the financial year ended 30 June 2017.

Directors
The names of the directors in office at anytime during or since the end of the year are:

Mary Pitt
Andrew Ramsamy (appointed 11 October 2016)
Janice Binsiar
Adam Doull
Lynda Smith
Merle Barba
Sonetta Fewquandie
Annabella Corowa  

Directors have been in office since the start of the financial year to the date of this report unless otherwise
stated.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the company during the financial year were:
operate a culturally appropriate comprehensive primary and medical health service targeting the
Mackay Regional Indigenous community, that addresses inequality in health status within and across
the population groups.

Short-term and Long-term Objectives

The company's short-term objectives are to:
- engage, promote and foster community control as a whole organisation moving forward;
-
- target chronic health in the regional community using a comprehensive primary health care model;
- ensure our workforce and organisational development is relevant to identified health status needs; and
- build linkages and partnerships to ensure a strong focus remains on improving Indigenous Health 

across the Mackay Region.
The company's long-term objectives are to:
- actively recognise and respect community control in the delivery of appropriate primary health care 

services;
- deliver best practice primary health care to our regional community;
- work in partnership with our regional community to manage chronic disease and improve their quality

of life;
- build a culturally and technically competent workforce that meets the needs of our regional community;

and
- be an advocate for, and on behalf of, our regional community's health needs and aspirations.

SERVICE (MACKAY) LIMITED

improve access to sustainable best practice culturally appropriate services across the Mackay Region;
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

Strategies

To achieve these objectives, the company has adopted the following strategies:
- development of improved systems of governance for the organisation's members;
- lead the development and delivery of holistic primary health care programs and services to better meet

the physical, social, emotional, cultural and spiritual wellbeing of our Mackay Region community;
- foster a continuous learning environment within the organisation to ensure ATSICHS Mackay continues

to meet the diverse needs of our community;
- improve the organisation's capacity to focus on prevention, detection and early intervention of chronic 

disease in our regional community;
- strengthen self management of health in our community to better manage chronic disease and improve

quality of life;
- foster a supportive workplace for new and existing staff and volunteers to achieve their potential in the

delivery of culturally appropriate health services; and
- expand alliances with other Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander organisations, private sector,

non-government and government bodies in order to raise the agenda for health needs and aspirations
of our regional community.

Key Performance Measures

Measuring our overall company performance:
- all funding grant terms and conditions maintained to satisfactory standard as deemed by relevant funder

feedback and annual risk audits;
- low level (% complaints against occasions of service) and satisfactory resolution of client complaints;
- low level of permanent staff turnover (% overall FTE);
- demonstrated maintenance of Corporate Regulatory provisions based on minimal and minor ASIC 

breaches annually;
- maintenance of an unqualified financial audit annually;
- maintenance of AGPAL accreditation; and
- achievement of ISO9001 Accreditation per auditor agreed timeframes.

Information on Directors

Ms Mary Pitt -  Chairperson

Qualifications -  Bachelor of Indigenous Community Management & Development,
   Justice of the Peace

Experience -  Board member - ATSICHS Mackay, Member of Women's Group

Special Responsibilities -  Chairperson, Member of board of directors

Mr Andrew Ramsamy -  Director

Qualifications -  Graduate Certificate in Management (QUT), Diploma of Management,
   Certificate IV in Business, Certificate IV in Transport Operations,
   General Aviation Commercial Pilot Licence, Commercial Master
    4/5 Captain

Experience -  Member of ATSICHS since 1993, CEO and board member - Mackay
   and District ATSIC Legal Aid Service 1991 - 1997, Manager ATSIASSI 
   Health Unit and Policy Coordination Qld Health 2001 - 2008

Special Responsibilities -  Member of board of directors

SERVICE (MACKAY) LIMITED
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Ms Janice Binsiar - Secretary

Qualifications -  Diploma in Community Welfare, Diploma in Community 
   Case Management

Experience -  Board member - Bingabirry Justice Group, board member - 
   ATSICHS Mackay

Special Responsibilities -  Member of board of directors

Mr Adam Doull -  Director

Qualifications -  Diploma of Management, Certificate IV in Training and Assessment,
   Certificate IV in Engineering (CAD), Certificate III in Fabrication
   (Tradesman Boilermaker), Workplace Health and Safety Officer,
   Certificate IV in Building & Construction.

Experience -  Chair of Skills Training Mackay, Previous Deputy Chair of the Mackay
   Region Area Consultative Committee (now the RDA), Committee member 
   of the Mackay Whitsunday Community Jobs Priority Committee, Deputy
   Chair of Skills Training Mackay, board member of MARABISDA,
   currently manager of Statewide Industries Pty Ltd.  Previously Area
   Supervisor for SKILLED workforce, Student Support Officer/
   Project Officer ATSISSI unit at the Mackay TAFE.

Special Responsibilities - Member of board of directors

Ms Lynda Smith -  Treasurer

Qualifications -  Justice of the Peace - JP (Qual), Bachelor of Applied Health Science,
   Certificate in Advanced Obstetrics & Gynaecology, Advanced
   Generalist - Certificate in Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander
   Primary Health Science, Hearing Health Skills Certificate -
   Australian Hearing, Eye Health for Indigenous Health Workers and
   Place Emergency Care, Senior First Aid, Department of Emergency
   Services - Counter Disaster & Rescue Services/Introduction to
   Disaster - Level 1.

Experience -  Management Course, Tropical Public Health - Contribution and
   and Teamwork Certificate, Director of Mudth Niyleta ATSI Housing / 
   Health - Sarina; Materials Handler / Store Person (8yrs) experience

Special Responsibilities -  Member of board of directors

Mrs Merle Barba -  Deputy Chairperson

Qualifications -  Community Elder, Community Member

Experience -  Chairperson - Mackay Coloured Cooperative, board member - 
   Aboriginal Legal Service, board member - HACC (10 years),
   Committee Member - All Black Sporting Club

Special Responsibilities -  Member of board of directors

SERVICE (MACKAY) LIMITED
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ABORIGINAL & TORRES STRAIT ISLANDERS COMMUNITY HEALTH 

DIRECTORS' REPORT
Mrs Sonetta Fewquandie - Director

Qualifications -  Bachelor of Community Welfare; Diploma of Business Management; 
   Certificate IV Training and Assessment; Certificate IV Indigenous
   Primary Health Care; Diploma Children's Services (Community 
   Services)

Experience -  Board of directors Mackay Coloured Cooperative (10 years); board of
   directors My105 Radio Station (3 years); Past employee ATSICHS
   15 years; Current manager of Mackay Aboriginal & Islander Justice 
   Alternative Group (MAIJAG) (5 years)

Special Responsibilities -  Member of board of directors

Ms Annabella Corowa - Director

Eligible to attend Number attended

Mary Pitt 5 5

Andrew Ramsamy 3 2

Janice Binsiar 5 4

Adam Doull 5 5

Lynda Smith 5 5

Merle Barba 5 4

Sonetta Fewquandie 5 5

Annabella Corowa 5 4

SERVICE (MACKAY) LIMITED
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ABORIGINAL & TORRES STRAIT ISLANDERS COMMUNITY HEALTH 
SERVICE (MACKAY) LIMITED

AUDITOR'S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION UNDER
SECTION 307C OF THE CORPORATIONS ACT 2001

TO THE DIRECTORS OF
ABORIGINAL & TORRES STRAIT ISLANDERS COMMUNITY HEALTH 

SERVICE (MACKAY) LIMITED

i.

ii.

Connole Carlisle
Chartered Accountants

MACKAY, QLD, 4740

________________________________________
Partner:  Brett Quinn

Dated:   7 September 2017

I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, during the year ended 30 June 2017 there have been no
contraventions of:

the auditor independence requirements as set out in the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit; and

any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

12 Gregory Street
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ABORIGINAL & TORRES STRAIT ISLANDERS COMMUNITY HEALTH 
SERVICE (MACKAY) LIMITED

PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Note 2017 2016
$ $

INCOME
Interest received 20,589 9,145
Grants received 2 4,338,611 3,946,873
Medicare, PIP payments and immunisation incentives 859,192 1,009,839
Registrar 13,270 100,670
Client record fees 2,045 1,533
Dental fees 6,385 83,062
Membership income 88 80
QUMAX income 13 2,293
Sundry income 11,469 24,994

5,251,662 5,178,489

LESS EXPENDITURE
Accreditation 21,323 13,071
Activities 214,379 182,844
Advertising 5,750 21,802
Auspicing fee - Murri Court 8,215 -  
Auditors' remuneration 3 17,700 10,090
Bank charges 858 1,255
Cleaning 20,280 25,347
Client support 183,244 106,270
Clinic supplies 72,050 60,559
Computer expenses 37,884 80,096
Contract medical staff 45,045 54,251
Depreciation 57,046 59,542
Electricity 79,861 75,016
Postage, freight and cartage 7,576 4,659
Insurance 55,414 55,257
Motor vehicle expenses 143,034 161,291
NAIDOC 8,206 14,305
Permits, licences and fees -  7,424
Printing and stationery 46,485 53,332
Rates and taxes 35,091 37,508
Rent 101,164 93,780
Repairs and maintenance 78,207 62,956
Security and safety inspections 2,908 2,916
Staff and board training and welfare 57,464 56,433
Storage fees 7,565 13,911
Superannuation contributions 311,857 309,685
Telephone 53,056 38,866
Travelling expenses 40,254 94,602
Travel allowance 17,650 23,318
Wages including leave provisions 3,459,833 3,489,301

5,189,399 5,209,687

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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ABORIGINAL & TORRES STRAIT ISLANDERS COMMUNITY HEALTH 
SERVICE (MACKAY) LIMITED

PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Note 2017 2016
$ $

62,263 (31,198)

NET OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) 62,263 (31,198)

Retained Profits at the beginning of the financial year 4,498,372 4,529,570

TOTAL AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION 4,560,635 4,498,372

RETAINED PROFITS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR 4,560,635 4,498,372

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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ABORIGINAL & TORRES STRAIT ISLANDERS COMMUNITY HEALTH 
SERVICE (MACKAY) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Note 2017 2016
$ $

Profit (loss) for the year 62,263 (31,198)

Other comprehensive income:

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Profit/(loss) on revaluation of land and buildings 10 (1,069,965) -  

Total other comprehensive income for the year (1,069,965) -  

Total comprehensive income (expense) for the year (1,007,702) (31,198)

Total comprehensive income (expense) attributable to members of 
the company (1,007,702) (31,198)

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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ABORIGINAL & TORRES STRAIT ISLANDERS COMMUNITY HEALTH 
SERVICE (MACKAY) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 30 JUNE 2017

Note 2017 2016
$ $

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 4 1,471,043 1,261,317
Trade and other receivables 5 10,065 67,994
Other assets 6 40,101 39,291

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 1,521,209 1,368,602

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 7 1,765,810 2,836,117

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 1,765,810 2,836,117

TOTAL ASSETS 3,287,019 4,204,719

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables 8 224,031 209,749
Provisions 9 159,717 175,332

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 383,748 385,081

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provisions 9 198,165 106,830

TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 198,165 106,830

TOTAL LIABILITIES 581,913 491,911

NET ASSETS 2,705,106 3,712,808

EQUITY
Reserves 10 (1,855,529) (785,564)
Retained earnings 4,560,635 4,498,372

TOTAL EQUITY 2,705,106 3,712,808

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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ABORIGINAL & TORRES STRAIT ISLANDERS COMMUNITY HEALTH 
SERVICE (MACKAY) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Note
Retained 
Earnings

Asset 
revaluation 

reserve Total

$ $ $

Balance at 1 July 2015 4,529,570 (785,564) 3,744,006
Comprehensive income
Profit (loss) for the year (31,198) -  (31,198)
Total comprehensive income for the 
year attributable to the member of the 
company (31,198) -  (31,198)

Balance at 30 June 2016 4,498,372 (785,564) 3,712,808

Balance at 1 July 2016 4,498,372 (785,564) 3,712,808
Comprehensive income
Profit for the year 62,263 -  62,263
Other comprehensive income for the year 10 -  (1,069,965) (1,069,965)
Total comprehensive income for the 
year attributable to the member of the 
company 62,263 (1,069,965) (1,007,702)

Balance at 30 June 2017 4,560,635 (1,855,529) 2,705,106

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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ABORIGINAL & TORRES STRAIT ISLANDERS COMMUNITY HEALTH 
SERVICE (MACKAY) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Note 2017 2016
$ $

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts from grant providers and health insurance commission 5,255,145 4,911,657
Payments to suppliers and employees (5,043,160) (5,074,424)
Interest received 20,590 9,145
Other income 33,856 210,339

Net cash provided by operating activities 12 266,431 56,717

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (56,704) (101,721)

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 12 (56,704) (101,721)

Net increase (decrease) in cash held 209,727 (45,004)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of financial year 1,261,316 1,306,320

Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year 12 1,471,043 1,261,316

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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ABORIGINAL & TORRES STRAIT ISLANDERS COMMUNITY HEALTH 
SERVICE (MACKAY) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

2017 2016
$ $

1 Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

2 Grants received:
Department of Health - Primary Health Care 2,345,819 2,301,614
Emotional Wellbeing (formerly Department of Health) 223,918 223,918
Institute for Urban Indigenous Health - Tackling Indigenous 
Smoking 579,651 344,125
Primary Health Network - Care Coordination and Supplementary 
Services (CCSS) 126,667 90,000
NATSIHA income 216,861 -  
Department of Health - Tackling Smoking & Healthy Lifestyle -  245,413
Department of Health - Chronic Disease 70,186 70,186
Departement of Health - New Directions 575,208 575,208
Department of Health - Capital Works -  96,409
Checkup Australia 12,233 -  
Department of Justice and Attorney General 82,750 -  
Primary Health Network - Active Healthy NQ 61,500 -  
Health Promotions 5,000 -  
Tropical Medical Training - James Cook University 7,000 -  
Gambling Community Benefit Fund 31,818 -  

4,338,611 3,946,873

3 Auditors' remuneration:
Auditing or reviewing the financial statements 17,700 10,090

The financial statements are a special purpose report prepared for use by directors and the member. The
directors have determined that the company is not a reporting entity.

The statements are prepared on an accruals basis. They are based on historic costs and do not take into
account changing money values or, except where specifically stated, current valuations of non-current
assets.

No Australian Accounting Standards, Australian Accounting Interpretations Views or other authoritative
pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board have been intentionally applied.

Page 75



ABORIGINAL & TORRES STRAIT ISLANDERS COMMUNITY HEALTH 
SERVICE (MACKAY) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

2017 2016
$ $

4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash at bank 200 200
Petty Cash 200 200
Self-generated medicare account -  26,967
General account 417,010 425,897
Dental account 51,383 6,684
Term Deposit 1,000,000 800,000
Welfare account 2,250 1,369

1,471,043 1,261,317

5. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
CURRENT
Sundry debtors 10,065 67,994

6. OTHER ASSETS
CURRENT
Prepayments 40,101 39,291

7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Land and buildings: 31/33 Victoria Street 2,908,516 2,908,516
Capital Works Costs 286,449 229,745
Less: independent valuation 29 June 2017 (1,069,965) -  

Total land and buildings 2,125,000 3,138,261

Less accumulated depreciation on land and buildings (386,938) (366,674)
Less: accumulated depreciation on Capital Works Costs (16,004) (8,980)

(402,942) (375,654)

Plant and Equipment 441,410 441,410
Less accumulated depreciation (397,658) (367,900)

Total plant and equipment          43,752 73,510

Total property, plant and equipment 1,765,810 2,836,117
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ABORIGINAL & TORRES STRAIT ISLANDERS COMMUNITY HEALTH 
SERVICE (MACKAY) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

2017 2016
$ $

8. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
CURRENT
Goods and services tax 85,982 67,352
Sundry creditors 38,858 6,547
Funds held on behalf of SEWBU Women's Group 3,585 2,459
Funds held on behalf of SEWBU Men's Group 100 100
Funds held on behalf of Mackay Aboriginal Dance Group 1,077 -  
Salary sacrifice payments outstanding 9,335 28,895
Withholding tax payable 58,798 72,629
Superannuation payable 26,296 31,767

224,031 209,749

9. PROVISIONS
CURRENT
Provision for holiday pay 159,717 175,332

NON-CURRENT
Provision for long service leave 198,165 106,830

10. RESERVES
(a) Asset Revaluation Reserve

(b) Analysis of Items of Other Comprehensive Income by Each 
Class of Reserve:
Asset revaluation reserve
Profit/(loss) on revaluation of land and buildings (1,069,965) -  

Movement in asset revaluation reserve (1,069,965) -  

Total other comprehensive income for the year (1,069,965) -  

11. LEASING COMMITMENTS
(a) Operating Lease Commitments

Non-cancellable operating leases contracted for but not 
recognised in the financial statements
Payable:
 not later than 12 months          190,670 197,895
 between 12 months and five years 90,158 139,214

280,828 337,109

The asset revaluation reserve records revaluations of non-current assets. Under certain circumstances
dividends can be declared from this reserve.
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ABORIGINAL & TORRES STRAIT ISLANDERS COMMUNITY HEALTH 
SERVICE (MACKAY) LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

2017 2016
$ $

12. CASH FLOW INFORMATION
(a) Reconciliation of Cash

Cash at the end of financial year as included in the statement of 
cash flows is reconciled to the related items in the statement of 
financial position as follows:

Cash at Bank 1,471,043 1,261,316

1,471,043 1,261,316

(b) Reconciliation of cash flow from operations with profit

Profit 62,263 (31,198)

Non-cash flows in profit: 
Depreciation 57,046 59,541

Changes in assets and liabilities:
Movement in receivables 57,929 (47,348)
Movement in other assets (18,166) 2,915
Movement in payables 32,311 (28,413)
Movement in provisions 75,720 54,188
Movement in other payables (673) 47,032

Net cash provided by operating activities 266,431 56,717

(c) Non-cash Financing and Investing Activities

Increase in property, plant and equipment 56,704 101,721

Net cash used in investing activities 56,704 101,721
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF

ABORIGINAL & TORRES STRAIT ISLANDERS COMMUNITY HEALTH SERVICE 
(MACKAY) LIMITED

Opinion

(i) 

(ii)

Basis for Opinion

Information Other than the Financial Report and Auditor's Report Thereon

ABORIGINAL & TORRES STRAIT ISLANDERS COMMUNITY HEALTH 
SERVICE (MACKAY) LIMITED

We have audited the accompanying financial report, being a special purpose financial report, of
Aboriginal & Torres Strait Islanders Community Health Service (Mackay) Ltd (the company) which
comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2017, profit or loss statement, statement of
changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes comprising a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information and the directors' declaration.

In our opinion, the financial report of Aboriginal & Torres Strait Islanders Community Health Service
(Mackay) Ltd is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

giving a true and fair view of the company's financial position as at 30 June 2017 and of its
performance for the year ended on that date; and

complying with Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements and the
Corporations Regulations 2001.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Report section of our report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the auditor
independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 and the ethical requirements of the Accounting
Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110: Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
Code) that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

We confirm that the independence declaration required by the Corporations Act 2001, which has been
given to the directors of Aboriginal & Torres Strait Islanders Community Health Service (Mackay) Ltd,
would be in the same terms if given to the directors at the time of this auditor's report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the company's annual report for the year ended 30 June 2017, but does not include the
financial report and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the
other information and accordingly we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In
connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial report or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF

ABORIGINAL & TORRES STRAIT ISLANDERS COMMUNITY HEALTH SERVICE 
(MACKAY) LIMITED

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Report

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report

-

- 

-

-

ABORIGINAL & TORRES STRAIT ISLANDERS COMMUNITY HEALTH 
SERVICE (MACKAY) LIMITED

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true
and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standard - Reduced Disclosure Requirements
and the Corporations Act 2001 and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of this financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness on the company's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may case significant doubt on the company's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the company to
cease to continue as a going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF

ABORIGINAL & TORRES STRAIT ISLANDERS COMMUNITY HEALTH SERVICE 
(MACKAY) LIMITED

-

-

a.

b.

c.

d.

e.

f.

g.

SERVICE (MACKAY) LIMITED
ABORIGINAL & TORRES STRAIT ISLANDERS COMMUNITY HEALTH 

I confirm that the Participant has maintained an asset register per clause 12.1(d) of the
Department of Health funding agreement and per clause 41 of the Department of Prime Minister
and Cabinet funding agreement

I confirm that the Participant followed the purchasing procedures for assets and services over
$22,000 set out in clause 20.1 in the Department of Health funding agreement (as per
depreciation schedule).

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the company to express an opinion on the financial report. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the company audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We understand that the Commonwealth of Australia and the Participant have entered into an
Agreement for the provision of financial assistance ("the Funds") to the Participant. A condition of
funding under the Agreement is that the Participant provides an audited detailed statement of receipts
and expenditure in respect of the Funds for each financial year and a statement of the balance at year
end.

In fulfilment of the condition, I hereby certify that:

I am a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia.

I am not an employee or officer of the Participant and I don't have any financial interests relating
to the shareholdings of the Participant.

The Participant's Grant Acquittal Statements are a fair and accurate record of the Funds received
and expenditure incurred on the Project for the year ended 30 June 2017.

Salaries and allowances paid to persons involved in the Project are in accordance with any
applicable award or agreement in force under any relevant law on industrial or workplace
relations.

I confirm that the Insurances per clause 29 of the Department of Health and clause 98 of the
Department of Prime Minister and Cabinet funding agreements have been taken out.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF

ABORIGINAL & TORRES STRAIT ISLANDERS COMMUNITY HEALTH SERVICE 
(MACKAY) LIMITED

h.

Connole Carlisle
Chartered Accountants
12 Gregory Street 
MACKAY, QLD, 4740

________________________________________
Partner:  Brett Quinn

Dated: 11 September 2017

ABORIGINAL & TORRES STRAIT ISLANDERS COMMUNITY HEALTH 
SERVICE (MACKAY) LIMITED

I confirm that the Participant has used all Medicare Benefits that it received, and all interest
earned on those Medicare Benefits, solely for the purpose of providing comprehensive primary
health care and substance use services in accordance with clause 5(b) in the funding agreement.
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ABORIGINAL & TORRES STRAIT ISLANDERS COMMUNITY HEALTH 
SERVICE (MACKAY) LIMITED

DIVISIONAL PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Note 2017 2016
$ $

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH - PRIMARY HEALTH CARE

INCOME
Grants received 2,345,819 2,301,614
Contribution from Self-Generated Income 747,779 1,284,378

3,093,598 3,585,992

LESS EXPENDITURE
Accreditation 21,323 13,071
Activities 49,151 50,444
Advertising 5,750 18,767
Auditors' remuneration 14,242 3,363
Bank charges 858 1,255
Cleaning 20,280 25,347
Client support 52,883 57,603
Clinic supplies 32,576 35,537
Computer expenses 32,024 76,088
Contract medical staff 38,788 47,705
Electricity 72,543 75,016
Postage, freight and cartage 6,005 4,659
Insurance 40,591 41,188
Motor vehicle expenses 51,450 70,131
Permits, licences and fees -  7,424
Printing and stationery 31,187 46,322
Rates and taxes 35,091 37,508
Rent 38,858 38,349
Repairs and maintenance 68,459 62,956
Security and safety inspections 2,908 2,916
Staff and board training and welfare 44,963 52,794
Storage fees 7,565 13,911
Superannuation contributions 189,766 212,463
Telephone 37,142 30,676
Travelling expenses 27,874 78,805
Travel allowance 6,282 15,233
Wages including leave provisions 2,165,039 2,466,461

3,093,598 3,585,992

NET OPERATING PROFIT -  -  

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) -  -  

Surplus/(Deficit) Balance at 1 July 2016 -  -  

Surplus/(Deficit) Balance at 30 June 2017 -  -  

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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ABORIGINAL & TORRES STRAIT ISLANDERS COMMUNITY HEALTH 
SERVICE (MACKAY) LIMITED

DIVISIONAL PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Note 2017 2016
$ $

DEPARTMENT OF PRIME MINISTER AND CABINET - SOCIAL AND EMOTIONAL WELLBEING

INCOME
Grants received 223,918 223,918

LESS EXPENDITURE
Activities 9,418 24,875
Auditors' remuneration 3,457 3,363
Insurance 14,823 14,070
Motor vehicle expenses 20,700 24,206
Printing and stationery 1,272 1,715
Rent 25,188 -  
Superannuation contributions 12,629 12,625
Telephone 2,162 2,991
Travelling expenses 369 5,099
Travel allowance 367 2,080
Wages including leave provisions 133,533 132,894

223,918 223,918

NET OPERATING PROFIT -  -  

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) -  -  

Surplus/(Deficit) Balance at 1 July 2016 -  -  

Surplus/(Deficit) Balance at 30 June 2017 -  -  

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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ABORIGINAL & TORRES STRAIT ISLANDERS COMMUNITY HEALTH 
SERVICE (MACKAY) LIMITED

DIVISIONAL PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Note 2017 2016
$ $

INSTITUTE FOR URBAN INDIGENOUS HEALTH - TACKLING INDIGENOUS SMOKING

INCOME
Grants received 579,651 344,125
Contribution from Self-Generated Income 24,722 -  

604,373 344,125

LESS EXPENDITURE
Activities 83,727 59,701
Computer expenses 4,255 -  
Electricity 5,832 -  
Postage, freight and cartage 1,571 -  
Motor vehicle expenses 26,408 11,956
Printing and stationery 5,728 5,295
Rent 37,118 38,761
Staff and board training and welfare 3,953 2,047
Superannuation contributions 35,521 18,314
Telephone 10,755 4,534
Travelling expenses 7,949 6,712
Travel allowance 8,244 4,022
Wages including leave provisions 373,312 192,783

604,373 344,125

NET OPERATING PROFIT -  -  

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) -  -  

Surplus/(Deficit) Balance at 1 July 2016 -  -  

Surplus/(Deficit) Balance at 30 June 2017 -  -  

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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ABORIGINAL & TORRES STRAIT ISLANDERS COMMUNITY HEALTH 
SERVICE (MACKAY) LIMITED

DIVISIONAL PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Note 2017 2016
$ $

PRIMARY HEALTH NETWORK - CARE COORDINATION AND SUPPLEMENTARY SERVICES (CCSS)

INCOME
Grants received 126,667            90,000
NATSIHA income 216,861 -  
Contribution from Self-Generated Income 53,046 -  

396,574 90,000

LESS EXPENDITURE
Client support 131,147 46,374
Clinic supplies 6,054 5,065
Contract medical staff 2,990 4,963
Superannuation contributions 22,244 2,916
Wages including leave provisions 234,138 30,682

396,574 90,000

NET OPERATING PROFIT -  -  

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) -  -  

Surplus/(Deficit) Balance at 1 July 2016 -  -  

Surplus/(Deficit) Balance at 30 June 2017 -  -  

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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ABORIGINAL & TORRES STRAIT ISLANDERS COMMUNITY HEALTH 
SERVICE (MACKAY) LIMITED

DIVISIONAL PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Note 2017 2016
$ $

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH - TOBACCO AND HEALTHY LIFESTYLE

INCOME
Grants received -  245,414
Contribution from Self-Generated Income -  13,010

-  258,424

LESS EXPENDITURE
Auditors' remuneration -  3,363
Motor vehicle expenses -  18,384
Rent -  16,672
Superannuation contributions -  19,029
Telephone -  665
Wages including leave provisions -  200,311

-  258,424

NET OPERATING PROFIT -  -  

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) -  -  

Surplus/(Deficit) Balance at 1 July 2016 -  -  

Surplus/(Deficit) Balance at 30 June 2017 -  -  

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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ABORIGINAL & TORRES STRAIT ISLANDERS COMMUNITY HEALTH 
SERVICE (MACKAY) LIMITED

DIVISIONAL PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Note 2017 2016
$ $

SELF-GENERATED INCOME

INCOME
Interest received 20,590 9,145
Medicare, PIP payments and immunisation incentives 859,191 1,009,839
Registrar 13,270 100,670
Client record fees 2,045 1,533
Dental fees 6,385 83,062
Membership income 88 80
Sundry income 11,469 24,994

913,038 1,229,323

LESS EXPENDITURE
Contribution to a different division 825,547 1,297,389

825,547 1,297,389

NET OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) 87,491 (68,066)

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 87,491 (68,066)

Surplus/(Deficit) Balance at 1 July 2016 951,893 1,019,959

Surplus/(Deficit) Balance at 30 June 2017 1,039,384 951,893

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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ABORIGINAL & TORRES STRAIT ISLANDERS COMMUNITY HEALTH 
SERVICE (MACKAY) LIMITED

DIVISIONAL PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Note 2017 2016
$ $

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH - CHRONIC DISEASE - CLOSING THE GAP

INCOME
Grants received 70,186 70,186

LESS EXPENDITURE
Motor vehicle expenses 8,604 11,347
Superannuation contributions 5,343 5,152
Wages including leave provisions 56,239 53,687

70,186 70,186

NET OPERATING PROFIT -  -  

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) -  -  

Surplus/(Deficit) Balance at 1 July 2016 -  -  

Surplus/(Deficit) Balance at 30 June 2017 -  -  

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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ABORIGINAL & TORRES STRAIT ISLANDERS COMMUNITY HEALTH 
SERVICE (MACKAY) LIMITED

DIVISIONAL PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Note 2017 2016
$ $

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH - NEW DIRECTIONS (FORMERLY MOTHERS & BABIES)

INCOME
Grants received 575,208 575,208

LESS EXPENDITURE
Activities 36,344 47,823
Advertising -  3,035
Clinic supplies 33,419 19,956
Computer expenses 224 4,008
Contract medical staff 3,267 1,584
Motor vehicle expenses 26,666 25,266
NAIDOC 8,206 14,305
Staff and board training and welfare 314 1,594
Superannuation contributions 40,109 39,186
Travelling expenses 2,772 3,987
Travel allowance 1,691 1,982
Wages including leave provisions 422,196 412,482

575,208 575,208

NET OPERATING PROFIT -  -  

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) -  -  

Surplus/(Deficit) Balance at 1 July 2016 -  -  

Surplus/(Deficit) Balance at 30 June 2017 -  -  

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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ABORIGINAL & TORRES STRAIT ISLANDERS COMMUNITY HEALTH 
SERVICE (MACKAY) LIMITED

DIVISIONAL PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Note 2017 2016
$ $

PHARMACY GUILD OF AUSTRALIA - QUMAX

INCOME
QUMAX income 13 2,293

LESS EXPENDITURE
Client support 13 2,293

13 2,293

NET OPERATING PROFIT -  -  

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) -  -  

Surplus/(Deficit) Balance at 1 July 2016 -  -  

Surplus/(Deficit) Balance at 30 June 2017 -  -  

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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ABORIGINAL & TORRES STRAIT ISLANDERS COMMUNITY HEALTH 
SERVICE (MACKAY) LIMITED

DIVISIONAL PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Note 2017 2016
$ $

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH - CAPITAL WORKS

INCOME
Grants received -  96,409

LESS EXPENDITURE
Capital Expenditure 24,546 71,863

24,546 71,863

NET OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) (24,546) 24,546

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (24,546) 24,546

Surplus/(Deficit) Balance at 1 July 2016 24,546 -  

Surplus/(Deficit) Balance at 30 June 2017 -  24,546

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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ABORIGINAL & TORRES STRAIT ISLANDERS COMMUNITY HEALTH 
SERVICE (MACKAY) LIMITED

DIVISIONAL PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Note 2017 2016
$ $

CHECKUP AUSTRALIA

INCOME
Grants received 12,233 -  

LESS EXPENDITURE
Activities 12,233 -  

12,233 -  

NET OPERATING PROFIT -  -  

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) -  -  

Surplus/(Deficit) Balance at 1 July 2016 -  -  

Surplus/(Deficit) Balance at 30 June 2017 -  -  

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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ABORIGINAL & TORRES STRAIT ISLANDERS COMMUNITY HEALTH 
SERVICE (MACKAY) LIMITED

DIVISIONAL PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Note 2017 2016
$ $

MURRI COURT ELDERS

INCOME
Grants received 82,150 -  
Reimbursement 600 -  

82,750 -  

LESS EXPENDITURE
Activities 15,165 -  
Auspicing fee - Murri Court 8,215 -  
Motor vehicle expenses 6,644 -  
Printing and stationery 2,464 -  
Staff and board training and welfare 2,929 -  
Superannuation contributions 3,657 -  
Telephone 2,821 -  
Travelling expenses 1,290 -  
Travel allowance 1,067 -  
Wages including leave provisions 38,498 -  

82,750 -  

NET OPERATING PROFIT -  -  

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) -  -  

Surplus/(Deficit) Balance at 1 July 2016 -  -  

Surplus/(Deficit) Balance at 30 June 2017 -  -  

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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ABORIGINAL & TORRES STRAIT ISLANDERS COMMUNITY HEALTH 
SERVICE (MACKAY) LIMITED

DIVISIONAL PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Note 2017 2016
$ $

PRIMARY HEALTH NETWORK - ACTIVE HEALTHY NQ

INCOME
Grants received 61,500 -  

LESS EXPENDITURE
Activities 18,099 -  
Motor vehicle expenses 2,562 -  
Printing and stationery 1,373 -  
Superannuation contributions 3,424 -  
Wages including leave provisions 36,042 -  

61,500 -  

NET OPERATING PROFIT -  -  

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) -  -  

Surplus/(Deficit) Balance at 1 July 2016 -  -  

Surplus/(Deficit) Balance at 30 June 2017 -  -  

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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ABORIGINAL & TORRES STRAIT ISLANDERS COMMUNITY HEALTH 
SERVICE (MACKAY) LIMITED

DIVISIONAL PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Note 2017 2016
$ $

HEALTH PROMOTIONS

INCOME
Grants received 5,000 -  

LESS EXPENDITURE
Staff and board training and welfare 5,000 -  

5,000 -  

NET OPERATING PROFIT -  -  

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) -  -  

Surplus/(Deficit) Balance at 1 July 2016 -  -  

Surplus/(Deficit) Balance at 30 June 2017 -  -  

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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ABORIGINAL & TORRES STRAIT ISLANDERS COMMUNITY HEALTH 
SERVICE (MACKAY) LIMITED

DIVISIONAL PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Note 2017 2016
$ $

TROPICAL MEDICAL TRAINING - JAMES COOK UNIVERSITY

INCOME
Grants received 7,000 -  

LESS EXPENDITURE
Computer expenses 1,173 -  
Printing and stationery 511 -  
Repairs and maintenance 5,140 -  
Telephone 176 -  

7,000 -  

NET OPERATING PROFIT -  -  

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) -  -  

Surplus/(Deficit) Balance at 1 July 2016 -  -  

Surplus/(Deficit) Balance at 30 June 2017 -  -  

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

Page 98



ABORIGINAL & TORRES STRAIT ISLANDERS COMMUNITY HEALTH 
SERVICE (MACKAY) LIMITED

DIVISIONAL PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Note 2017 2016
$ $

GAMBLING COMMUNITY BENEFIT FUND

INCOME
Grants received 31,818 -  

LESS EXPENDITURE
Capital Expenditure 32,158 -  

32,158 -  

NET OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) (340) -  

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (340) -  

Surplus/(Deficit) Balance at 1 July 2016 -  -  

Surplus/(Deficit) Balance at 30 June 2017 (340) -  

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Contact 
ATSICHS Mackay Ltd 
31-33 Victoria Street 
Mackay QLD 4740 
Toll Free: 1800 817 773 
Fax: (07) 4951 0683 
Website: www.atsichs.org.au 




